
   

 

 
99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.939.2254    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
 

New Albany Planning Commission Agenda 

Monday, July 19, 2021  7:00pm 

Members of the public can attend the meeting in person at New Albany Village Hall at 99 West Main 

Street or via Zoom Webinar from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

Join this meeting on your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83826792496  

Or dial in using your phone: 646-558-8656 

Access Code/ Webinar ID: 838-2679-2496 
 

 

Information and directions for logging into this meeting can be found at www.newalbanyohio.org 
 
I. Call To Order 

 

II. Roll Call 

 

III. Action of Minutes:  June 21, 2021 

   

IV. Additions or Corrections to Agenda 

Swear in All Witnesses/Applicants/Staff whom plan to speak regarding an application on 

tonight’s agenda.  “Do you swear to tell the truth and nothing but the truth”. 

 

V.  Hearing of Visitors for Items Not on Tonight's Agenda 

 

VII. Cases:   

 

FDP-64-2021 Final Development Plan 

Final Development Plan for a new Verizon Wireless data center located on the east side of Souder 

Road (PID: 222-004464-00). 

Applicant: Foresite Group, LLC   

 
Motion of Acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  

FDP-64-2021. 

 

Motion of approval for application FDP-64-2021 based on the findings in the staff report with 

the conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

 

FPL-66-2021 Final Plat 

Final plat for the dedication of public right-of-way for Ganton Parkway East Phase II located on 

the east side of Beech Road and south of Worthington Road. 

Applicant: City of New Albany 

 
Motion of Acceptance of staff reports and related documents into the record for  

FPL-66-2021. 

 

Motion of approval for application FPL-66-2021 based on the findings in the staff report with the 

conditions listed in the staff report, subject to staff approval. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83826792496
www.newalbanyohio.org


   

 

 
99 West Main Street    ●    P.O. Box 188    ●    New Albany, Ohio 43054    ●    614.939.2254    ●    Fax 939.2234    ●    newalbanyohio.org 

 
VIII. Other Business 

 

IX. Poll members for comment 

 

X. Adjournment 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 1 of 43 

New Albany Planning Commission 

June 21, 2021 DRAFT Minutes 

 

Planning Commission met in regular session in the Council Chambers at Village Hall, 99 W. Main 

Street and was called to order by Planning Commission Chair Mr. Neil Kirby at 7:05 p.m.  

 

Those answering roll call: 

        Mr. Neil Kirby, Chair    Present 

Mr. Brad Shockey    Present (7:50 p.m.) 

Mr. David Wallace    Present 

Mr. Hans Schell     Present 

Ms. Andrea Wiltrout     Present  

Mr. Matt Shull (Council liaison)   Present 

  

(Mr. Kirby, Mr. Shockey, Mr. Schell, and Mr. Shull present via Zoom.com). 

 

Staff members present: Steven Mayer, Development Services Coordinator; Chris Christian, Planner; 

Mitch Banchefsky, City Attorney (via Zoom.com); Jay Herskowitz for Ed Ferris, City Engineer (via 

Zoom.com); and Josie Taylor, Clerk (via Zoom.com). 

 

Moved by Mr. Wallace, seconded by Ms. Wiltrout to approve the May 17, 2021 meeting minutes. Upon 

roll call: Mr. Wallace, yea; Ms. Wiltrout, yea; Mr. Schell, yea; Mr. Kirby, yea. Yea, 4; Nay, 0; Abstain, 

0. Motion passed by a 4-0 vote. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there were any additions or corrections to the Agenda. 

 

Mr. Christian stated none from staff. 

 

Mr. Kirby noted all who would be speaking before the Planning Commission (hereafter, "PC") this 

evening would be sworn to tell the truth and nothing but the truth on a per case basis. 

 

Mr. Christian reviewed the process on how to speak on the Zoom meeting if anyone wanted to 

participate.  

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there were any persons wishing to speak on items not on tonight's Agenda. (No 

response.) 

 

FDP-49-2021 Final Development Plan 

Final Development Plan for a 36-lot residential subdivision on 29.87 acres generally located south 

of Brandon Road, east and west of Lambton Park Road and north of Eryehall Pass (PID: 222-

004458). 

Applicant: The New Albany Company LLC c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq. 

 

Mr. Christian presented the staff report. 

 

Mr. Mike Barker, Deputy Director City of New Albany Public Works Department, discussed 

the engineering of the roads and determinations of safety in the proposed application for 

pedestrians and traffic. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there was any engineering on this application. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 2 of 43 

Mr. Jay Herskowitz stated they had the same comments as Mr. Christian regarding the 

maintenance responsibility for the reserves. Mr. Herskowitz stated there were discrepancies in 

the representations of street typical sections and how that information was represented in plan 

view. Mr. Herskowitz stated the note regarding RCC could be removed. Mr. Herskowitz noted 

final comment would be reserved until the detailed construction plans became available.  

 

Mr. Kirby asked to hear from the applicant and swore those who would be speaking on the 

application to tell the truth. 

 

Mr. Tom Rubey swore to tell the truth.  

 

Mr. Tom Rubey, New Albany Company, LLC., stated the applicant agreed to all seven (7) 

conditions and highlighted changes on the project since the last discussion with the PC. Mr. 

Rubey noted safety measures taken on the project. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there would be a pedestrian path on the east side of Head of Pond Road. 

 

Mr. Rubey asked staff to zoom into the area on the screen so he could respond to Mr. Kirby's 

question. 

 

Mr. Christian presented the image. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated they would be extending trail connections on the east and west sides of Head 

of Pond Road across Lambton Park Road. Mr. Rubey stated there would be a change in 

pavement for the area, new lights, and pedestrian crossing signs would be added. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there would not be a northbound connection from the intersection to the cart 

crossing where the lots began. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated that was right, they had looked at that but with heavy trees they would see 

what they could do. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the existing streets were okay for bikes but a pedestrian connection would be 

preferred if possible. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated they could figure it out once they got the streets in place. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated he thought they were then in agreement regarding what condition 3 meant.  

 

Mr. Kirby asked how Lot 3 and Lot 4 addressed the streets  

 

Mr. Rubey stated Lots 3 and 4 were the largest lots and their driveways intersected the public 

road. Mr. Rubey stated he believed they would be oriented in an east/west position. Mr. Rubey 

stated he believed the front doors on these homes would not face the road. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated there was room to do that on these lots as they were 1.3 and 1.4 acres. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated right, and the pond could even be increased to be a unique feature. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the sequence of Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 33 and then the corner should be maintained 

to create a gorgeous street. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 3 of 43 

Mr. Rubey stated yes and noted this street had a pond modeled on the pond at Ealy Crossing 

and would have overlooks. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked what was considered in the traffic study, what those factors meant, and 

what touch points would have made the decision go in a different direction. 

 

Mr. Barker stated he would defer to Mr. Samuelson, but low traffic volume was key here. 

 

Mr. Dave Samuelson, Senior Traffic Engineer with E.P. Ferris, stated sight distance and the 

intersection's design would be two key factors for an all way stop. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout stated that when they discussed traffic they were using the existing Baughman 

Grant and Head of Pond Roads and asked if the roads' character were changed, how would they 

account for that in their analysis.  

 

Mr. Samuelson stated volume did come into play if adding a four way stop, but the type of 

development being considered and the character of the area suggested it would not come close 

to meeting the warrants in terms of volume. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked what the numbers were with this study and what kind of numbers would 

trigger a four way stop. 

 

Mr. Samuelson stated the studies looked at an eight (8) hour period that needed to meet certain 

thresholds. Mr. Barker stated a major street would need 300 vehicles per hour and a side street 

would need 200 vehicles per hour during an eight (8) hour period, so a total of 500 vehicles per 

hour for an eight (8) hour period at the intersection. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked what the totals were in this study. 

 

Mr. Samuelson stated about 140 was the highest volume on Lambton Park Road and forty (40) 

or so was the highest volume on Head of Pond Road. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if they had looked at Baughman Grant. 

 

Mr. Samuelson stated no, but they would be happy to continue to monitor and at such time as a 

warrant would be met they could implement a four way stop. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if that would be a year from now or could a homeowner that noticed an 

increase in traffic request an additional study. 

 

Mr. Barker stated they could commit at one (1) year after development to do a pro-active count 

but certainly phone calls to the Public Service Department could also have it monitored. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout stated she the applicant had changed the materials in the road. Ms. Wiltrout asked 

the applicant about other changes on those roads. 

 

Mr. Rubey asked which roads. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout stated the intersections, how were the intersections changed since the last 

discussion. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 4 of 43 

Mr. Rubey stated crosswalks, two light poles, narrower streets, and no parking was added as 

well as gates that would suggest a privatized intersection and discourage through movement. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if the intersection at Reserve F had a full stop. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated yes. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated a full stop would go a long way. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked if the gates would be functional or conceptual. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated they would be conceptual and always remain open. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout stated okay. 

 

Mr. Schell thanked the applicant for listening to the residents' comments from the prior 

meeting. Mr. Schell asked about the size of these roads and where the no parking requirements 

would be. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated the no parking would apply to the neck at the Head of Pond Road extension 

and also to the roads on the north and southeast corner. Mr. Rubey stated the balance would 

accommodate on street parking on one (1) side. 

 

Mr. Shockey asked if cross walks would be on both sides of the street. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated both sides. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if members of the public had any comments. 

 

Mr. Jess McCarter, a resident, stated he appreciated the work done. Mr. McCarter noted he 

appreciated adding the gates, but noted that the gates on Wiveliscombe were a hazard as they 

could not be seen around and there was not foot path there. Mr. McCarter asked that sight lines 

should be considered on the proposed gates and a pedestrian path behind the gates should be 

added for safety. Mr. McCarter stated the other additions were great. Mr. McCarter asked if 

there had been a discussion of extending the rough hewn pavement to the entire intersection to 

slow all traffic. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated it was an interesting idea and could make sense later on if this became a four 

way stop, but had not been proposed at this time. 

 

Mr. McCarter stated it might alleviate residents' concerns as it was difficult to see clearly 

through this intersection. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked to share his screen and showed an image of the gates at Wiveliscombe. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated he agreed they could be improved but thought this was the right tool. 

 

Mr. McCarter stated it went to his point, one could not see around the gates. Mr. McCarter said 

the gates slowed traffic, but a walkway was needed for pedestrians and better visibility was also 

needed. 

 

Mr. Rubey discussed the initial thoughts on the gates and ways to increase visibility. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 5 of 43 

 

Ms. Sarah Feasel, a resident in the community, stated her comments were similar to those of 

Mr. McCarter. Ms. Feasel asked if the grading of the path and road on Lambton Park Road 

would be changed. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated yes, the grading would be changed so that the grade was lowered and closer 

to the grade at Lambton Park Road with a slight incline on the trail going east to west. 

 

Ms. Feasel stated she liked the gates and noted a four-way stop would be good for all. Ms. 

Feasel noted the traffic study on June 3 was conducted on a rainy day which could have 

decreased traffic for vehicles and pedestrians. 

 

Mr. JT Thurston, a resident in the community, stated the proposal looked great and asked what 

its impact would be on the schools. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated the project would be very lucrative for the school district and noted it 

would produce about two (2) times the revenue needed to pay for the students it produced. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated the original zoning for this was 88 units and they were only putting in 36 

units. 

 

Mr. Thurston asked how many students would be added to the community. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated the standard was that, on average,.8 students would be added per single 

family home, so a total of 27 or 28 students for these 36 units.  

 

Mr. Thurston stated the class size at the elementary school level was now approximately 25 

children while the National Education Associated recommended the ideal number should be 15 

students. Mr. Thurston stated the reality could differ from what the research said. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated there was a comment in the Zoom chat from Ms. Feasel. Mr. Kirby read that 

Ms. Feasel stated she thanked the applicant for their continued consideration of the publics' 

requests; pulling the walking trail through from Lambton Park Road would be great and 

potentially closing the gates; and no stone if there would not be stone homes in the 

development. 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for FDP-49-2021, 

seconded by Ms. Wiltrout. Upon roll call vote: Mr. Kirby, yea; Ms. Wiltrout, yea; Mr. Schell, yea; Mr. 

Wallace, yea: Mr. Shockey, yea. Yea, 5; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Moved by Mr. Schell to approve application FDP-49-2021 based on the findings in the staff report, 

with the seven (7) conditions listed in the staff report, seconded by Mr. Kirby. Upon roll call: Mr. 

Schell, yea; Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. Shockey, yea; Mr. Wallace, yea; Ms. Wiltrout, yea. Yea, 5; Nay, 0; 

Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

 

FPL-61-2021 Final Plat 

Final plat for a 36-lot residential subdivision on 29.87 acres generally located south of Brandon 

Road, east and west of Lambton Park Road and north of Eryehall Pass (PID: 222-004458). 

Applicant: The New Albany Company LLC c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq 

 

Mr. Christian presented the staff report and noted additional conditions of approval. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 6 of 43 

Mr. Kirby asked if there was any engineering on this. 

 

Mr. Herskowitz stated that since the initial review of the plat they had received hard copy 

documentation that all Army Corps of Engineer permits had been received in accord with Code 

§1187 and stated they would like one more opportunity to comment on the plat after detailed 

construction plans became available. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked to hear from the applicant. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated the applicant agreed to all conditions in the staff report. Mr. Rubey stated the 

applicant wanted to redesign the intersection at the northeast corner, with the pork chop 

landscape in the middle, so it would be more of a 90 degree angle intersection without the pork 

chop. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if that was Reserve F. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated yes. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated that if any members of the public wished to speak they could use the raise 

your hand button. (No response.) 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if the right-of-way or the lots in the upper 20s, such as Lots 26 or 27, would be 

affected. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated it would be more of a traditional intersection and the lot sizes would not 

change. Mr. Rubey stated the frontages might shift slightly, but it would be more visually 

appealing on the street. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if it would be a T intersection with 90 degree legs on the T. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated exactly. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated that Lot 25, instead of being partly angled as it addressed Head of Pond Road, 

would be side loaded to Baughman Grant. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated the cul-de-sac at the northeast corner was intended to be for empty nesters. 

Mr. Rubey stated having a clearer demarcation of where that started and stoped was preferred. 

Mr. Rubey stated Lot 26 would not be part of Baughman Grant Road and Lot 25 would front on 

Head of Pond Court as part of that empty nester neighborhood.  

 

Mr. Kirby stated that if the right-of-way was going away, then the lots would expand slightly. 

 

Mr. Rubey stated yes. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if staff would want that to be subject to staff approval. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated yes. 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to accept the staff reports and related documents into the record for FPL-61-2021, 

seconded by Ms. Wiltrout. Upon roll call vote: Mr. Kirby, yea; Ms. Wiltrout, yea; Mr. Schell, yea; Mr. 

Wallace, yea: Mr. Shockey, yea. Yea, 5; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 7 of 43 

Moved by Ms. Wiltrout to approve application FPL-61-2021 based on the findings in the staff report, 

with the following conditions: 

1. Reserves A, B, C, E, F and G totaling 1.48 +/- acres be owned by the city and maintained by the 

HOA in perpetuity; 

2. Reserve D totaling 4.8 +/- acres be owned maintained by the HOA in perpetuity; 

3. The plat is revised to show the centerline of Head of Pond Drive and Head of Pond Road be aligned 

subject to staff approval; 

4. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval; 

5. Approval of the final plat is contingent upon the approval of the final development plan for this 

development; 

6. A note be added to the plat to outline the intent and purpose of the 20 foot landscape and 

maintenance private easement, subject to staff approval; 

7. The rework of Reserve F will be subject to staff approval; 

seconded by Mr. Kirby. Upon roll call: Ms. Wiltrout, yea; Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. Shockey, yea; Mr. 

Wallace, yea; Mr. Schell, yea. Yea, 5; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

 

ZC-43-2021 Zoning Amendment  

Rezoning of 30.6 +/-acres from R-1 to Infill-Planned Unit Development (I-PUD) generally located 

at the southwest and southeast corners of the New Albany Condit Road and Central College Road 

intersection for an area to be known as the “NoNA Zoning District.” 

Applicant: NoNA Master Development LLC 

 

Mr. Christian presented the staff report. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there was any engineering on this application. 

 

Mr. Herskowitz stated he agreed with staff that during the Final Development Plan (hereafter, 

"FDP") they would need to strictly adhere to the floodplain Code. 

 

Mr. Kirby called for a brief break until 9:00 p.m. 

 

Mr. Christian swore the following parties: Mr. Justin Leyda, Mr. Yaromir Steiner, Mr. Drew 

Laurent, Mr. Mike Workosky, Mr. Brian Quackenbush, and Mr. Jeffrey Pongonis, to tell the 

truth and nothing but the truth. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked the applicant to speak. 

 

Mr. Aaron Underhill, for the applicant, discussed the project. 

 

Mr. Justin Leyda, Steiner & Associates, showed a presentation on the screen and discussed 

issues or questions raised during prior meetings. 

 

Mr. Jeff Pongonis, MKSK, described the look and feel of the stream corridor. 

 

Mr. Leyda spoke about detention on the stream corridor. 

 

Mr. Brian Quackenbush, EMH&T discussed how the locations were selected and the 

developing storm water design at this time. 

 

Mr. Leyda discussed action items to be completed prior to the FDP. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 8 of 43 

Mr. Bryan Stone, Steiner & Associates, responded  to staff's comments and conditions in the 

staff report.  

 

Mr. Kirby asked Mr. Stone if he had touched on number 3. 

 

Mr. Stone stated the applicant asked if they could commit to installing sidewalks on the south 

end of the proposed road if and when it was connected to New Albany Road East. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked staff to comment on Mr. Stone's statement. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated staff supported the request to delay the installation of the leisure path until the 

road was connected. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated there were conflicts between the documents to be brought into the record and 

asked how they would be resolved. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated the sub area plan would be the ruling document.  

 

Mr. Kirby asked if the PC could have a hard limit on what the term "limited" meant in terms of 

mowing on the understory. 

 

Mr. Pongonis stated it was early now but they could define the term. Mr. Pongonis stated the 

intent was to preserve what was there and provide a naturalized landscape. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated he agreed. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if they would commit to working out the language for limited mowing subject 

to staff approval. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated yes. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated there would be less mowing then there is today and the goal was that it 

would be as natural as possible. 

 

Mr. Pongonis stated there might be some mowing on the shoulders but they agreed. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if native plants would stay in the understory. 

 

Mr. Pongonis stated yes. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated they wanted to remove the non-native species. 

 

Mr. Pongonis stated he agreed. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated he would prefer there not be detention or retention in the preservation zone. 

Mr. Kirby stated the PUD text did not have page numbers. Mr. Kirby stated there were 

numerous paragraphs in the sub-area text that did not exist in all sub-areas, such as landscape. 

Mr. Kirby asked what that would default to.  

 

Mr. Underhill stated that if they had not addressed something the intent was to default to Code. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked staff if they were comfortable with that. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 9 of 43 

 

Mr. Mayer stated staff was comfortable with that and this would be evaluated at the time of the 

FDP by staff and the PC and the applicant would also provide a master landscape plan that 

would be reviewed. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked for a definition of the term "green features" found under section C. II. 4.  

 

Mr. Stone stated be believed the intent was to allow for green roofs. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if they could delineate what was not currently allowed. 

 

Mr. Stone stated they would work with the City on that. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the solar panel language was very good. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked for a discussion regarding how many hamlets there would be and where they 

would be. 

 

Mr. Stone stated there were only two (2) hamlets, one was NoNA and the other was in the five 

(5) points area. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated he agreed. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated there were only two (2) hamlets. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked staff if that was what the Strategic Plan had. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated that was what the Strategic Plan contained and indicated the Strategic Plan 

was being shown on the screen at this time. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked why other hamlets could not be built elsewhere. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated the hamlets were site specific areas cited in the Strategic Plan and had been 

chosen and evaluated through a public process. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated this project was really dense and may be the most dense zoned in the Village. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated that could be true but noted that other areas in the City might exceed this. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated they needed to get this right and it needed to be the right size. Mr. Kirby asked 

when a hamlet would be too big. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated it was not a question of size but whether the public space made it valuable 

and a good neighbor to all. Mr. Steiner stated a magic number did not exist. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated this was a holistic design. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated there was a sweet spot between the development and density. 

 

Mr. Stone stated density of this type was responsive to demographic trends. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 10 of 43 

 

Mr. Steiner stated that from an economic standpoint this was the kind of place that would 

attract the new generation. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated it addressed demographics quite well. Mr. Kirby asked if, given accessibility, 

they would not want to go north of Central College. 

 

Mr. Stone stated that was correct. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked the applicant what they would add if they acquired control of the notch on SR 

605. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated it would be residential, likely townhomes. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if it would address what was directly south and west of it. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated yes but it might be a little less organic. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked to see the slide on different developments and the comparable numbers 

again. 

 

Mr. Leyda put the slide on the screen. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked for a discussion on the restrictions for the Millennial/Active Adult 

Apartments. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated they were focusing on a smaller unit type with a single bedroom with a 

maximum of eight (8) units having three (3) bedrooms. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated 40% would be two (2) bedroom units. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked how the comparable apartments compared to the proposed apartments. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated they were similar but they had more three (3) and two (2) bedroom units. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked how well the one (1) bedroom units would sell. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated many could not afford two (2) bedroom units and there was a big demand for 

one (1) bedroom units as long as priced in the $1200 to $1500 range. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout asked what two (2) bedroom units would be priced at. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated they were about two (2) or three (3) years away from pricing, but close to 

$1800 to $2000, although rental demand was increasing. 

 

Mr. Schell stated there was a concern that while there might be a benefit to schools financially 

they still had to consider space planning for school and he was concerned about the number of 

students. Mr. Schell stated this was beautifully planned and well thought out. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated their final projection would be a net gain of about 35 students. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 11 of 43 

Mr. Wallace stated page 5 spoke about height at the bottom of the page and indicated four (4) 

stories were 53 feet but subsection D, subarea 5 said just 55 feet and asked if there were stories 

for that designation. 

 

Mr. Stone asked where he was referencing. 

 

Mr. Wallace stated subsection D, subparagraph 5. Mr. Wallace stated it said 55  feet but did not 

designate stories and noted stories were also not stated in subsection A. 

 

Mr. Stone stated subarea 5 related to the assisted living and was approximate for other nearby 

area heights. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated they were against the fence. 

 

Mr. Wallace asked if on page 6 the reference to exterior doors was for fire doors. 

 

Mr. Stone asked for the subsection reference.  

 

Mr. Wallace stated II.C.9.  

 

Mr. Stone stated he believed it referred to exterior doors. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated the intent was for them to be fire doors not primary entry points. Mr. 

Underhill asked if this was subarea 5. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated it was II. 

 

Mr. Stone stated it was Architectural Elements, item 9 at the bottom of the page. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated it read as if it applied to residential. . 

 

Mr. Wallace stated right. 

 

Mr. Stone stated it seemed the intent was for them not to be entry type doors. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the language needed to be cleaned up. 

 

Mr. Wallace asked if the FDP would be for each subarea separately or all together. 

 

Mr. Stone stated it would all be together. 

 

Mr. Wallace asked for an explanation of the language regarding architectural elements to 

encourage pedestrian activity in section 11's second sentence. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated they committed to having an architectural feature or element that encouraged 

pedestrian access which fronted on the street.  

 

Mr. Mayer stated that was at staff suggestion. 

 

Mr. Wallace stated he had not understood the pedestrian activity but it made sense. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated it would encourage vibrancy or activity if you were walking on the street. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 12 of 43 

 

Mr. Wallace stated it was strange language. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated they could update and clarify it. 

 

Mr. Wallace asked if the definition of a nano brewery was well established. 

 

Mr. Stone stated it was not a larger manufacturing facility, the intent was to have a restaurant or 

an outdoor dining area with beer they brewed on site. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if cottages under 900 square feet were prohibited. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated base subdivision requirements did prohibit them, but the PUD would override 

that.  

 

Mr. Kirby stated good. 

 

Mr. Wallace asked if the last page's section on waivers used standard language and what types 

of waivers were they discussing. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated it was the language from the urban center Code and it allowed for waivers 

in limited circumstances for architectural features.  

 

Mr. Wallace asked if it would be reviewed using the Duncan factors or the standards written 

into the text. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated those written in the text would apply. 

 

Mr. Wallace stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the core usage would likely be a variance while changes for design might be a 

waiver. 

 

Mr. Underhill stated yes. 

 

Mr. Banchefsky stated a use variance would be approved by City Council. 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if any members of the public had any comments. 

 

Ms. Feasel, stated she was concerned about the schools and noted that there were currently 24 

to 25 students in a class when the optimal number of students was 15. Ms. Feasel noted New 

Albany only had one elementary, middle, and high school buildings and could not handle more 

student growth the way other communities could. Ms. Feasel asked for details regarding how 

the school's projections could support the new students. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated the conversation with the schools had been on the total number of student 

increase not on class size projections. 

 

Ms. Feasel stated there was a difference between revenue versus class size and the comparisons 

made to different districts was not really comparable. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 13 of 43 

Mr. Steiner stated it was a legitimate concern but the schools needed to determine how to use 

the additional revenue. 

 

Mr. Stone stated the comparables were provided to show that similar apartment building 

projects had yielded a similar number of students, not to indicate the school districts were 

similar. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated staff coordinated with the school district annually and every three (3) years 

the student district shared the number of students per subdivision. Mr. Mayer stated the City 

had found that over time the number of students indicated per type of housing unit were 

accurate. 

 

Ms. Kerri Mollard, a resident in the Enclave subdivision, stated the total number of 365 units 

did not include the senior housing. Ms. Mollard asked if there was an estimate of how many 

units there would be in the senior housing and had that been taken into account for the traffic 

study. 

 

Mr. Stone stated there were 125 units and it had been taken into account. 

 

Ms. Mollard asked if that had included not only the seniors living there but also the staff. 

 

Mr. Stone stated yes. 

 

Ms. Mollard asked if the study had looked at current traffic patterns, which still included lower 

volume due to Covid-19. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated they had looked to 2034 with significant increases from today and only 8% 

of that growth was from this project.  

 

Mr. Drew Laurent, with the applicant, stated all data used was pre-pandemic and also the City 

growth projections. 

 

Ms. Mollard stated turn lanes would help, but making a left out of Snyder Loop was difficult. 

Ms. Mollard asked if the townhomes would have two (2) or four (4) stories or two (2) to three 

(3) stories, as four (4) stories would be out of scale. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated that on Ms. Mollard's side of the road it would probably be only two (2) or 

three (3) stories, but the other side had a larger right-of-way and could have taller buildings. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated the senior living was significantly set back from SR 605. 

 

Ms. Mollard asked if the stream corridor included the section of the Sugar Run stream in the 

Enclave neighborhood. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated they would like it to do so and would also like to cooperate with the Enclave 

neighborhood. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated the average pedestrian flow would not be into the Enclave property. 

 

Ms. Mollard stated the stream was an asset. Ms. Mollard asked if, on the northern edge of her 

side along Central College, they would connect the leisure trail from the Enclave to the path 

across Central College. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 14 of 43 

 

Mr. Steiner stated they were speaking to that owner to see what could be done. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the City had pushed for many years to build paths as a statement of intent 

showing where they would be filled in. 

 

Ms. Mollard stated thank you. 

 

Ms. Danielle Chatfield Beres, on the Enclave HOA Board, stated the community was mainly in 

favor of the development. Ms. Beres stated there were traffic concerns on SR 605 and Snyder 

Loop and asked if they would consider a stop light or roundabout there. Ms. Beres asked if they 

would be lowering the speed limit to at least 35 mph. Ms. Beres stated this development could 

bring residents who would use facilities in the Enclave and asked if there could be a discussion 

on cost sharing. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated the Enclave should speak to their City Council member about a unified stream 

policy. 

 

Ms. Beres stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Doug Berner and Mrs. Loni Berner, residents in the community, spoke to the PC about the 

development. Mr. Berner stated it sounded like the development drove the plan rather than the 

plan drove the development. Mr. Berner stated he believed the density issue should cause this 

to be reconsidered and the application should be tabled for a review of that. 

 

Mr. Stone stated that this evenings meeting was one of many meetings that would yet occur and 

offer opportunities for review. 

 

Mr. Berner stated he understood that, but it would be more difficult later than it was now. 

 

Mrs. Loni Berner asked what the cost of the condos would be. 

 

Mr. Steiner asked if she meant the townhomes. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated about $650,000 for the townhomes and about $800,000 for the detached, 

single family homes. 

 

Mrs. Berner asked what the whimsical residences were. 

 

Mr. Leyda stated they would be detached units under 900 square feet in the trail hub area. Mr. 

Leyda stated they were intended to have a unique feature or quality to them and were to be used 

as short-term rental or corporate housing. 

 

Mrs. Berner stated the development was very nice and upscale, but noted she had a lot of 

development around her and this was upsetting as she wanted to live in the country. 

 

Mr. Steiner stated the development was surrounded by commercial although they introduced 

some residential. 

 

Mrs. Berner asked why there was so much development but no development near Kitzmiller 

Road and SR 161. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 15 of 43 

Mr. Kirby stated that Market Street would go across Reynoldsburg-New Albany Road in late 

summer or early fall. 

 

Mrs. Berner stated thank you. 

 

Mr. Mayer promoted Mr. Bill Resch to panelist so he could speak. Mr. Mayer stated that Mr. 

Resch had also sent a comment in the Zoom chat which asked staff to mention that the Friends 

of the Rocky Fork & Tributary endorsed the NoNA proposal and park. 

 

Mr. Resch had technical issues and was unable to speak to the PC. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated there was another chat asking what the setback was from Central College and 

SR 605. 

 

Mr. Stone stated from Central College they had established a seventy (70) foot setback from the 

centerline. Mr. Stone stated that for SR 605 they had established a fifty (50) foot setback from 

the right-of-way centerline. 

 

Mr. Wallace noted the document received from Mr. Resch's group should be part of the record. 

 

Mr. Mayer stated yes. 

 

Mr. Shockey stated this was a ground breaking plan. Mr. Shockey stated traffic would be a 

situation the City and this developer would be involved with in the future. Mr. Shockey stated 

New Albany had changed, as had surrounding communities, and he fully supported the 

application. 

 

Ms. Wiltrout stated this was a new chapter in New Albany's future and this plan was good and 

she looked forward to seeing it develop. 

 

Mr. Schell stated he appreciated the vision of the City and developer. 

 

Mr. Wallace stated there was some deviation from the City's standards regarding density and 

school impact. Mr. Wallace stated this should not set any precedents that developers could 

come in and claim that because the houses were very expensive they could obtain a pass from 

the schools. Mr. Wallace stated that was not happening here. Mr. Wallace stated this was a 

unique and very individualized project and that accounted for deviations from standard policies 

that could be made. 

 

Mr. Kirby stated he concurred and there was nothing like this in the community that he was 

aware of. Mr. Kirby stated the community needed this variety but he wished the City's 

firefighters and teachers would have more places to live in the community as well. Mr. Kirby 

stated they seemed to have a good handle of the demographics but noted they needed to get the 

details right and the FDP would be a bear. 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to accept the staff reports and related documents, including correspondence and 

other materials that were submitted at various times, into the record for ZC-43-2021, seconded by Ms. 

Wiltrout. Upon roll call vote: Mr. Kirby, yea; Ms. Wiltrout, yea; Mr. Schell, yea; Mr. Wallace, yea: Mr. 

Shockey, yea. Yea, 5; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Moved by Mr. Kirby to approve application ZC-43-2021 based on the findings in the staff report, with 

the six (6) conditions listed in the staff report, with condition (3) in the staff report to include a notation 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 16 of 43 

that the building of the leisure trail could be done after the road came through, and with the following 

additional conditions: 

7. The limited mowing language would be subject to staff approval and applicant to retain the natural 

understory in the preservation zone; 

8. Language clean-up to be subject to staff approval;  

seconded by Mr. Wallace. Upon roll call: Mr. Kirby, yea; Mr. Wallace, Mr. Shockey, yea; Mr. Schell, 

yea; Ms. Wiltrout, yea. Yea, 5; Nay, 0; Abstain, 0. Motion passed by a 5-0 vote. 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Kirby asked if there was any other business. 

 

Mr. Christian stated none from staff. 

 

Poll Members for Comment 

 

None. 

 

Mr. Kirby adjourned the meeting at 10:50 p.m. 

 

Submitted by Josie Taylor.  

 

  



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 17 of 43 

 

APPENDIX 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

June 21, 2021 Meeting 

  

 

NEW ALBANY COUNTRY CLUB SECTION 30 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

 

LOCATION:  A portion of a property generally located north and west of Lambton Park and 

south of Brandon Road (PID: 222-004458). 

APPLICANT:   The New Albany Company LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  

REQUEST: Final Development Plan 

ZONING:   1998 NACO C-PUD; subarea 1.d 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FDP-49-2021 

 

Review based on: Application materials received May 21 and June 7, 2021.   

Staff report completed by Chris Christian, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a final development plan for Section 30 of the New Albany Country Club. This 

new section includes 36 residential lots and three new streets. The applicant also requests review and 

approval of a final plat application (FPL-61-2021) that is evaluated under a separate staff report.  

 

The property is zoned C-PUD.  C.O. 1159.03 states the process in a C-PUD shall consist of a 

Comprehensive Plan which shall constitute the rezoning of the property; a Preliminary Development 

Plan which shall consist of more detailed plans for a subarea or subareas of the Comprehensive Plan; 

and a Final Development Plan which shall consist of a detailed development and engineering plans 

for a subarea or portion of a subarea. On March 15, 2021, the Planning Commission approved a 

preliminary development plan for this same area with conditions (PDP-20-2021).   

 

The Parks and Trails Advisory Board reviewed the application at their June 7, 2021 meeting and 

recommended approval to the Planning Commission. 

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 29.87+/- acre development area is part of a larger 105.34+/- acre property. A majority of the 

105.34 acre property contains portions of the New Albany Country Club golf course as well as some 

undeveloped land where residential uses are permitted to be developed. The surrounding land uses 

include the golf course and residentially zoned and used land.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 18 of 43 

Staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations. Primary 

concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended action in 

underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 

 

The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 

(a) That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 

applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

(b) That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky Fork-

Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 

(c) That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 

(d) That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify the 

deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning Ordinance; 

(e) Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 

(f) Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such other 

facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not violate any 

contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

(g) Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness to 

existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

(h) Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 

(i) Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development periphery; 

(j) Gross commercial building area; 

(k) Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 

(l) Spaces between buildings and open areas; 

(m) Width of streets in the project; 

(n) Setbacks from streets; 

(o) Off-street parking and loading standards; 

(p) The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi- phase  

developments; 

(q) The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 

(r) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit (if 

required);  

(s) The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 
 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on the purpose and intent. Per Section 1159.02, 
PUD’s are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the Strategic 

Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native vegetation, 

wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 

modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through the 

strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 

harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and streets, 

thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 

services; 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile travel, 

encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage pedestrian 

circulation between land uses; 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 19 of 43 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the provision of 

underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas and open space in 

excess of existing standards; 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 

reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-residential 

uses for the mutual benefit of all; 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 

l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 

 

A. Engage New Albany Strategic Plan  

The site is located within the Residential District future land use district. The Engage New Albany 

Strategic Plan lists the following development standards for the Residential District: 

• Organically shaped stormwater management ponds and areas should be incorporated into the 

overall design as natural features and assets to the community. 

• Houses should front onto public open spaces and not back onto public parks or streets. 

• All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be provided on-

site. 

• A hierarchy of open spaces is encouraged. Each development should have at least one open 

space located near the center of the development. Typically, neighborhood parks range from a 

half an acre to 5 acres. Multiple greens may be necessary in large developments to provide 

centrally located greens.  

• Adequate amounts of open space and parkland are encouraged to be provided on site.  

• Rear or side loaded garages are encouraged. When a garage faces the street, the front façade of 

the garage should be set back from the front facade of the house.  

• Any proposed residential development outside of the Village Center shall have a base density 

of 1 dwelling unit per gross acre in order to preserve and protect the community’s natural 

resources and support the overall land conservation goals of the community. A transfer of 

residential density can be used to achieve a gross density of 1 dwelling unit per acre.  

• Private streets are at odds with many of the community’s planning principles such as: 

interconnectivity, a hierarchy of street typologies and a connected community. To achieve these 

principles, streets within residential developments must be public.  

 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends the following standards as prerequisites for all 

development proposals in New Albany: 

• Development should meet setback recommendations contained in strategic plan. 

• Streets must be public and not gated. Cul-de-sacs are strongly discouraged. 

• Parks and open spaces should be provided, publicly dedicated and meet the quantity 

requirements established in the city’s subdivision regulations (i.e. 20% gross open space and 

2,400 sf of parkland dedication for each lot). 

o All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be 

provided on-site. If it cannot be provided on-site, purchasing and publicly dedicating 

land to expand the Rocky Fork Metro Park or park space for the Joint Parks District is 

an acceptable alternative. 

• The New Albany Design Guidelines & Requirements for residential development must be met. 

• Quality streetscape elements, including an amenity zone, street trees, and sidewalks or leisure 

• trails, and should be provided on both sides of all public streets. 

• Homes should front streets, parks and open spaces. 

• A residential density of 1 dwelling unit (du) per acre is required for single-family residential 

and a density of 3 du per acre for age restricted housing. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 20 of 43 

o Higher density may be allowed if additional land is purchased and deed restricted. This 

type of density “offset” ensures that the gross density of the community will not be 

greater than 1 unit per acre. Any land purchased for use as an offset, should be within 

the NAPLS district or within the metro park zone. 

o 3 du/acre is only acceptable if 100% age restricted. Otherwise, the federal regulations 

and criteria for subdivisions to qualify as age-restricted must be accounted for when 

calculating density (i.e. 80% age restricted and 20% non-age restricted). 

o Age restriction must be recorded as a deed restriction and included as a requirement in 

the subdivision’s zoning text. 

 

B. Use, Site and Layout 
1. The applicant proposes to create a new section of the New Albany Country Club, Section 30 

within the 1.d subarea (Lambton Park Central Cluster) of the 1998 NACO C-PUD 

Comprehensive Plan.  

2. Zoning text section 1d.01(1) permits a maximum of 88 single family cluster detached and 

attached housing types to be developed in the subarea. The applicant proposes to develop 36 

units within the subarea and deposit the remaining 52 permitted units into the NACO PUD 

housing bank on record with the city.  

3. Zoning text section 1d.01(8) requires all lots to have frontage and access on a public and/or 

private right-of-way and this requirement is being met.   

4. Zoning text section 1d.01(3) states that the minimum lot width at the building line shall be 50 

feet. All of the proposed lots are meeting this requirement. 

5.  Zoning text section 1d.01(9) states that reasonable and good faith efforts will be made to not 

back homes onto public rights-of-way and public parks. There are lots situated where homes 

may back onto the adjacent private, New Albany Country Club golf course and proposed 

privately owned reserve areas within the subdivision. As proposed, this requirement is being 

met as the lots are situated to allow homes to front onto public rights-of-way.  

6. Zoning text section 1d.01(4) requires the following setbacks: 

Perimeter Boundary Required Setback 

Front Yard 15 feet 

Rear Yard 10 feet 

Side Yard 10 feet for detached homes 

0 feet for attached homes 

 

 All of the proposed lots are meeting the minimum required setbacks.  

 

C. Access, Loading, Parking  

1. As proposed, the site is serviced using a new street created using an existing stub of Baughman 

Grant and one new curb cut on Lambton Park Street that aligns with Head of Pond Road.  

a. Zoning text section 1d.02(2)(a) requires cluster street to be 22 feet wide from curb to curb 

with 40 feet of right-of-way to be provided. In order to address comments and concerns 

expressed during the preliminary development plan hearing, the applicant proposes a 22-

foot paved street at both entrances into this new section in order to deemphasize the street 

and force traffic to slow down when approaching these intersections. The remainder of the 

street will be 24 feet wide throughout the rest of the section and 50 feet of right-of-way is 

being provided for the entire street, meeting the zoning text requirement. For comparison, 

typical subdivision streets are 26 feet wide based on the city’s subdivision regulations. The 

22 and 24 foot street sections here appear to be appropriate.  

2. The subdivision includes one cul-de-sac street on the northern portion of the site and a one-way 

loop street on the southeast portion of the site.  

a. Zoning text section 1d.02(2)(a) requires this cul-de-sac street to be 22 feet wide from curb 

to curb with 40 feet of right-of-way to be provided. As proposed, the cluster street on the 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 21 of 43 

northern portion of the site is proposed to be 22 feet wide from face of curb to face of curb 

with 50 feet of right-of-way, meeting this requirement.  

i. The city’s subdivision regulations C.O. 1187.08(a)(5) states no cul-de-sac shall exceed 

six hundred (600) feet in length unless lot widths exceed one hundred (100) feet at 

building setback lines, then the maximum length shall not exceed one thousand (1,000) 

feet.  This cul-de-sac is approximately 421+/- feet in length.  

b. The one way, loop street shown on the southeast portion of the site is proposed to be 20 

feet wide from face of curb to face of curb with 34 feet of right of way.  

i. The proposed street width matches the design of similar streets in the New Albany 

Country Club including Coldicott Leys in Ebrington which is a one-way street.  

ii. The proposed street matches the city subdivision regulation requiring 20 feet of 

pavement for one-way streets.   

3. Zoning text section 1d.02(4) states that on street parking is prohibited on pavement widths of 

22 feet and on curvilinear sections of streets measuring 26 feet. The final development plan 

states that on street parking will be prohibited for all streets that are 22-23 feet wide, however 

the applicant did not provide the location of no parking signs on the plans. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that on street parking be prohibited for all streets less than 24 feet in 

width and that the applicant provide the locations of no parking signs as part of the private site 

improvement plan during the permitting process, subject to staff approval.  

4. The applicant provided a turn study analysis for larger emergency vehicles that demonstrates 

successful turn movements.  

5. The city engineer has reviewed all proposed streets within the subdivision and is supportive of 

their design and locations. Additionally, the city engineer states that the new intersection at 

Lambton Park and Head of Pond Road does as design and submitted does not present any 

pedestrian safety concerns due to the traffic volumes in the area, sufficient sight distance for 

both pedestrians and motorists, and the design of the intersection.  

a. The street network provided accomplishes an important objective contained in the Engage 

New Albany Strategic Plan by maximizing connectivity and safety of street networks in the 

city. The strategic plan recommends providing multiple connections to distribute traffic 

throughout streetway networks and to connect stub streets, like Baughman Grant and the 

existing Head of Pond stub, in order to improve connectivity and mobility between 

neighborhoods. 

b. The applicant provided a memo stating that the final design of the Lambton Park Road and 

Head of Pond intersection was determined based on several items including the 

preservation of existing trees, site grading, safety of both pedestrians and motorists and 

pedestrian connectivity. To accomplish this, the applicant has narrowed the street with at 

this intersection to calm traffic, added granite cobbles similar to what has been employed in 

other sections of the country club and established a lower grade to ensure existing tree 

survivability. The city staff has reviewed the intersection and is supportive of its design.  

6. The final development plan also illustrates that the applicant proposes to improve pedestrian 

connectivity at the new Head of Pond and Lambton Park Road intersection by adding two 

pedestrian crossings that will allow pedestrians to cross Lambton Park Road on both sides of 

the street.  

 

D. Architectural Standards 

1. The architectural standards for this section have been approved as part of the 1998 NACO C-

PUD zoning text. This development will contain custom designed homes and the Community 

Development Department staff, including the city architect, will review zoning/building 

permits to enforce the architectural standards of the zoning text. The applicant submitted a 

memo stating that the existing, Tidewater Georgian architectural vocabulary that is employed 

throughout the New Albany Country Club will be utilized for this development. Additionally, 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 22 of 43 

the applicant states that the development will incorporate a more liberal interpretation of this 

style, much like what has developed in the Ealy Crossing neighborhood. 

2. The existing zoning text contains the same high-quality architectural standards that have made 

the New Albany Country Club neighborhoods so successful. Many of these existing standards 

were used to develop the New Albany Design Guidelines and Requirements 

a. The text allows windows to be of traditional themes, requires simulated or true 

divided light in double hung windows.  

b. Brick, wood siding and composite material such as hardi-plank are permitted 

exterior building materials.  

c. The text prohibits double bay garage doors and individual garage doors cannot be 

wider than 9 feet.  

 

D. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  
1. Per C.O. 1159.07, detailed landscaping plans must be provided for all areas of the final 

development plan. The landscape plan must include the proposed landscape for all reserve 

areas and street lawns. The applicant submitted a proposed street tree plan for the subdivision. 

Staff recommends a condition of approval that the landscape plan for the reserve areas, 

stormwater basin and entry features be subject to staff approval.  

2. Section 1d.03(1)(3)(c) requires the developer to install a four-foot-wide sidewalk along both 

sides of all streets in the development within the right-of-way. The applicant is largely 

exceeding this requirement by providing a 5-foot sidewalk and 8-foot-wide leisure trail 

throughout the development. There is one section on the southwest side of the new Head of 

Pond intersection where there is no sidewalk present. The applicant states that the reasoning not 

including pedestrian connectivity along this short section is to maintain existing trees on the 

site as required by the Planning Commission at the time of rezoning. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the developer explore any possibilities of field locating a sidewalk or 

leisure trail within this area while being sensitive to existing trees, subject to staff approval.  

3. The city subdivision regulations require parkland and open space to be provided as part of the 

construction of a new subdivision. Zoning text section 1d.04(2) states that land must be 

dedicated as parks and open space within the subarea.  

4. C.O. 1187.15(a) requires 2,400 square feet of parkland to be dedicated per dwelling unit, as 

part of the development of a new subdivision. Additionally, C.O. 1187.16(a) requires 20% of 

the gross developed land area to be used as open space. The table below shows the required and 

proposed amounts of parkland and open space. As noted in the application materials, the 

applicant intends to offset their shortage of parkland by using the NACO parkland bank credits 

on record with the city. The amount of open space provided does not meet code requirements. 

The Parks and Trails Advisory board reviewed the application and recommended approval 

during their June 7, 2021 meeting. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the applicant 

use the parkland/open space bank credits to offset the shortage of open space and parkland 

dedication.   

 

 
C.O. 

Requirement 

Shown on 

FDP as 

Required 

(acres)* 

Provided 

(acres) 

Difference Meets 

Code? 

1187.16 

Open Space 

Reserves  5.974 5.95 -0.024 No 

1187.15 

Parkland 

Dedication 

Reserves 1.98 0.93 -1.05 No 

 Total 7.95 6.88 -1.07 No 

 *Calculations based on 29.87 acres and 36 lots.   
 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 23 of 43 

5. The final development plan states that all open space and parkland will be owned and 

maintained by the city. In order to meet code requirements and to be consistent with recently 

approved subdivisions, staff recommends a condition of approval that: 
a. Reserves A, B, C, E, F, and G be owned by the city and maintained by the HOA in 

perpetuity.  

b. Reserve D be owned and maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. Reserve D contains a 

wetland and there is no opportunity to develop any amenities and/or trails within in it in 

order to meet the environmental regulations of this space. Keeping this space privately 

owned, to match with its OEPA permits appears appropriate in this case. 
6. The applicant does not propose to install any playground equipment within this section of the 

country club. Section 1d.04(2) of the zoning text states that parks and open spaces will be in the 

form of neighborhood parks to service the needs of the residents and that the goal is to have 

some open space area within 1,200 l.f. of all residential units. Additionally, the text states that 

the developer will use reasonable good faith efforts to accomplish this and if it cannot be 

achieved will demonstrate a reasonable hardship and what mitigating factors will be made. It 

appears that all of the homes are within 1,200 l.f. of open space areas. Adjacent sections of the 

country club include parks such as Lambton Park (1,000+/- feet away) and Tiverton (1,200 +/- 

feet away) that contain playground amenities.  

7. Zoning text section 1d.04(3) states that street trees must be installed on both sides of internal 

streets at an average rate of one tree every 30 feet. The trees must have a caliper of 2.5 inches. 

The applicant is meeting this requirement.  

 

E. Lighting & Signage 

1. Zoning text section 1d.05(1)(b) requires the typical Village of New Albany gooseneck 

street lights to be utilized. Zoning text section 1d.06 requires the developer to use the 

standard city street and regulatory signage. The final development plan states that all 

regulatory signs will be in accordance with City of New Albany standards and 

consistent with existing country club communities. 

 

F.   Other Considerations 
1. The Applicant proposes to erect brick piers at the northern and southern entrances into the 

subdivision. The pier height is approximately 10’ and two of the piers at the northern entrance 

will be located within the right-of-way. These piers are similar to those approved by the 

Planning Commission for other sections of the country club. 

2. The piers located within the right-of-way do not appear to be located at intersections, therefore 

should not pose any sight distance visibility conflicts.  However, the city engineer and city 

attorney will have to review the proposal for safety and liability concerns. The city engineer 

and attorney will determine the appropriate legal mechanism that is necessary for the applicant 

and the city to execute in order to allow the piers to be located as proposed and staff 

recommends that this be a condition of approval. 

3. The city will not be able to maintain the piers, fences and cobblestone within the right-of-way, 

therefore the applicant must commit to the maintenance, repair and replacement of these items 

through an agreement with the city. Similar agreements have been executed for the same items 

located in different sections of the country club. 

4. The boundaries of the development plan conform to the boundaries of the subarea, meeting the 

intent of the zoning district.  

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff recommends 

a condition of approval that these comments be addressed, subject to staff approval.  



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 24 of 43 

1. Refer to Note E, sheet 1 of 8.  Confirm that Reserves are to be maintained by the City. 

2. Remove the note at the bottom of sheet 2 of 8 requiring City approval to utilize RCC pavement 

base.  

3. Sheet 3 of 4 shows proposed R/W of 34’ near Reserve A.  Typical street sections shown on 

sheet 2 of 8 show no streets with proposed R/W of 34’.  Please revise. 

4. Sheet 3 and 4 of 8 of the FDP shows 20’ pavement widths at the cul-de-sac.  Typical street 

sections shown on sheet 2 of 8 show no pavement widths of 20’.  Please revise. 

5. We recommend that “No Parking Signs” be added along curved sections of streets. 

6. We will evaluate storm water management, sanitary sewer collection and streetway 

construction related details once construction plans become available 

 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

Basis for Approval: 

Staff is supportive of the final development plan as it is in conformity with the Residential land use 

recommendations of the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. The site is unique as it is surrounded by 

the golf course on three sides and a wetland on the north side which warrant special design 

considerations. The applicant has designed this new development to be sensitive and complementary 

to the established character of the immediate area that provides connectivity for motorists and 

pedestrians.  

 

There are two existing road stubs at Baughman Grant to the north and Head of Pond to the south. 

These road stubs were installed to provide connectivity and they should be utilized.  Well-networked 

streets provide shorter, more direct routes between destinations. This increases the efficiency and 

reliability of the road network and allows for better traffic flow throughout the larger network.  The 

intersections are designed to match other successful intersections within the county club community 

through the use of narrowed streets, granite cobbles, cross walks and handicapped ramps installed 

across Lambton Park Road to both east and west side of Head of Pond Road, and vehicular and 

pedestrian scaled signage to alert motorists and walkers. 

 

Staff recommends approval provided that the Planning Commission finds the proposal meets sufficient 

basis for approval with the conditions of the approval listed below.   

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for FDP-49-2021:  

 

Move to approve preliminary development plan application FDP-49-2021 based on the findings in the 

staff report with the following conditions.  

1. On street parking is prohibited for all streets less than 24 feet in width and the applicant must 

provide the locations of no parking signs as part of the private site improvement plan during 

the permitting process.  

2. The landscape plan for the reserve areas, stormwater basin and entry features is subject to 

staff approval.  

3. The developer must explore any possibilities of field locating a sidewalk or leisure trail along 

the southwest section of the new street while being sensitive to existing trees, subject to staff 

approval. 

4. The applicant must deduct 1.07 +/- acres of parkland/open space bank credits to offset the 

shortage of open space and parkland dedication.   

5. All open space and parkland, with the exception of reserve D, be owned by the city and 

maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 25 of 43 

6. The city engineer and attorney will determine the appropriate legal mechanism that is 

necessary for the applicant and the city to execute in order to allow the piers to be located as 

proposed. 

7. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

  



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 26 of 43 

Approximate Site Location: 

 

 
Source: Google Earth 

  



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 27 of 43 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

June 21, 2021 Meeting 

  

 

NEW ALBANY COUNTRY CLUB SECTION 30 

FINAL PLAT 

 

 

LOCATION:  A portion of a property generally located north and west of Lambton Park and 

south of Brandon Road (PID: 222-004458). 

APPLICANT:   The New Albany Company LLC, c/o Aaron Underhill, Esq.  

REQUEST: Final Plat 

ZONING:   1998 NACO C-PUD; subarea 1.d 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Residential District 

APPLICATION: FPL-61-2021 

 

Review based on: Application materials received February 16 and 26, 2021.   

Staff report completed by Chris Christian, Planner. 

 

II. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a final plat for Section 30 of the New Albany Country Club. The plat includes 

36 residential lots, seven reserves and three new roads.  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 29.87+/- acre development area is part of a larger 105.34+/- acre property. A majority of the 105. 

34 acre property contains portions of the New Albany Country Club golf course as well as some 

undeveloped land where residential uses are permitted to be developed. The surrounding land uses 

include the golf course and residentially zoned and used land.  

 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

Planning Commission’s review authority of the preliminary plat is found under C.O. Section 1187. The 

applicant must return to the Planning Commission for review and approval of a final plat. Primary 

concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended action in 

underlined text.  

 

• The final plat follows the proposed New Albany Country Club Section 30 final development plan.  

The plat shows 36 residential lots to be developed. The proposed lot layout and dimensions match 

what is shown on the final development plan and meets the requirements of the zoning text.  

• This phase of the plat contains seven (7) reserve areas shown as reserves A, B, C, D, E, F and G on 

the plat with a total acreage of 6.28 +/- acres. According to the plat notes, all of the proposed reserve 

areas will be used as open space for the subdivision. The plat states that the City of New Albany will 

own and maintain all reserve areas. In order to meet code requirements and to be consistent with 

recently approved subdivisions, staff recommends a condition of approval that: 

o Reserves A, B, C, E, F and G totaling 1.48 +/- acres be owned by the city and maintained by 

the HOA in perpetuity. 

o Reserve D totaling 4.8 +/- acres be owned maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. Reserve D 

contains a wetland and there is no opportunity to develop any amenities and/or trails within in it 

in order to meet the environmental regulations of this space. C.O. 1187.16(b) states that all 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 28 of 43 

publicly and privately-owned parks and open space must be accessible by roadway or public 

access easement. Additionally, maintaining the ownership of the reserve by the HOA will 

ensure it makes the USACE and Ohio EPA issued permits. 

• The plat will create three (3) new publicly dedicated streets totaling 4.27 +/- acres: .  

o Head of Pond Drive with 50 feet of right-of-way that connects to the Head of Pond Road 

intersection. An extension of the existing stub of Baughman Grant to a new curb cut on 

Lambton Park Road that aligns with Head of Pond Drive with 50 feet of right-of-way.   

o One new cluster public street on the north side of the development (Head of Pond Court) with 

50 feet of right-of-way. 

o One new one-way loop public street as part of Head of Pond Drive on the southeast side of the 

development with a pavement width of 20 feet and 34 feet of right-of-way.   

• Proposed developer utility and proposed public utility easements are shown on the plans. 

o The final plat shows a 20 foot landscape and maintenance easement on the rear of the lots that 

back onto the private golf course.  Staff recommends a condition of approval that a note be 

added to the plat to outline the intent and purpose of this private easement. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval this note be added, subject to staff approval.  

• Per the city’s subdivision regulations, C.O. 1187.04, all new streets shall be named and shall be 

subject to the approval of the Planning Commission.  The applicant proposes to continue the names 

of Baughman Grant and Head of Pond Drive. The new cluster street at the northeastern portion of 

the site will be named Head of Pond Court.   

• The text appropriately shows a 15 foot front yard setback along all the lots as required by the zoning 

text.  

• Zoning text section 1d.01(3) states that the minimum lot width at the building line shall be 50 feet. 

All of the proposed lots are meeting this requirement. 

• The city’s subdivision regulations C.O. 1187.08(a)(5) states no cul-de-sac shall exceed six hundred 

(600) feet in length unless lot widths exceed one hundred (100) feet at building setback lines, then 

the maximum length shall not exceed one thousand (1,000) feet.  This cul-de-sac is 421 feet in 

length.  

• C.O. 1187.04(d)(4) and (5) requires verification that an application, if required, has been submitted 

to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency in compliance with Section 401 of the Clean Water 

Act and to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers in compliance with Section 404 of the Clean Water 

Act. The applicant has submitted documentation that demonstrates the appropriate permits have 

been obtained.  

• The intersection of Lambton Parkway and Head of Pond Drive does not match the final 

development plan since the centerline of Head of Pond Drive and Head of Pond Road don’t align.  

The roads must align to ensure safe and appropriate turning for vehicles.  Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the plat is revised to show the centerline of Head of Pond Drive and Head 

of Pond Road aligned subject to staff approval.  

 

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments. Staff recommends 

a condition of approval that these comments be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

7. In accordance with code sections 1159.07 (b)(2) J and K, we recommend that the applicant 

provide documentation indicating that all OEPA and ACOE permitting requirements have been 

obtained. 

8. We will evaluate storm water management, sanitary sewer collection and roadway construction 

related details once construction plans become available 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 29 of 43 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

Basis for Approval: 

The final plat is generally consistent with the final development plan and meets code requirements. 

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for FPL-61-2021:  

 

Move to approve preliminary plat application FPL-61-2021 with the following conditions.  

8. Reserves A, B, C, E, F and G totaling 1.48 +/- acres be owned by the city and maintained by 

the HOA in perpetuity. 

9. Reserve D totaling 4.8 +/- acres be owned maintained by the HOA in perpetuity. 

10. The plat is revised to show the centerline of Head of Pond Drive and Head of Pond Road be 

aligned subject to staff approval. 

11. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

12. Approval of the final plat is contingent upon the approval of the final development plan for this 

development.   

13. A note be added to the plat to outline the intent and purpose of the 20 foot landscape and 

maintenance private easement, subject to staff approval. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 

 
Source: Google Earth 

  



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 30 of 43 

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

June 21, 2021 Meeting 

  

 

NoNA ZONING DISTRICT 

ZONING AMENDMENT  

 

 

LOCATION:  6495 Central College Road, 6501 Central College Road, 6527 Central College 

Road, 6545 Central College Road, 6557 Central College Road, 6571 Central 

College Road, 6589 Central College Road, 6945 Central College Road, 6944 

New Albany Condit Road, 6922 New Albany Condit Road, 6941 New Albany 

Condit Road, 6939 New Albany Condit Road, 6911 New Albany Condit Road, 

6873 New Albany Condit Road, 6857 New Albany Condit Road, 6841 New 

Albany Condit Road (PIDs: 222-000670, 222-000673, 222-000676, 222-

000688, 222-000668, 222-000549, 222-000669, 222-000654, 222-000314, 

222-000375, 222-000672, 222-0000671, 222-000686, 222-000664, 222-

000685 and 222-000675)  

APPLICANT:   NoNA Master Development LLC 

REQUEST: Zoning Amendment   

ZONING:   R-1 to Infill-Planned Unit Development (I-PUD) 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center and Hamlet Location 

APPLICATION: ZC-43-2021 

 

Review based on: Application materials received on May 7 2021 

Staff report completed by Chris Christian, Planner. 

 

III. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The applicant requests review and recommendation to City Council to rezone 30.6+/- acres from R-1 

to Infill-Planned Unit Development (I-PUD). The proposed zoning will permit the development of a 

new mixed use, hamlet district envisioned in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. The zoning area 

will be known as the “NoNA Zoning District.” 

 

During the Engage New Albany community outreach effort, residents expressed interest in creating 

small, walkable neighborhood retail/restaurant locations as well as adding some different housing 

types to help New Albany become a life span community with housing for young professionals and 

empty nesters. This feedback resulted in the recommendation of creating hamlets in the Engage New 

Albany Strategic Plan with development standards designed to meet this need. The concept of a 

hamlet identifies opportunities in the city to introduce walkable retail and commercial uses that are 

integrated with residential areas. The Engage New Albany Plan identifies this general site location 

and one other as locations for hamlets to be developed based on their location in the city and the 

existing development patterns and context. The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan was adopted 

endorsed by the Planning Commission and adopted by City Council earlier this year. The proposed 

rezoning is the hamlet concept brought to life in one of the locations identified in the plan. The 

proposed text permits a variety of commercial, residential (multi-family, attached and detached single 

family) and assisted living facility uses. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 31 of 43 

 

 

On May 20, 2021, the Rocky-Fork Blacklick Accord Panel recommended approval of the application. 

The application met 89% of the Accord Town Mixed Use land use district development standards.  

 

Once the rezoning application has been approved by City Council, the application must return to the 

Planning Commission with a final development plan application due to the Infill-Planned Unit 

Development (I-PUD) zoning classification.   

 

Chapter 1159 of the city’s Codified Ordinances (Planned Unit Development District) permits the use 

of more flexible land use regulations and provides flexible design and development standards in order 

to facilitate the most advantageous land development techniques. Planned Unit Development zoning 

is often used to establish district designations for uses that are harmonious with the general area and 

the Strategic Plan. The objective of a Planned Unit Development zoning is to encourage ingenuity, 

imagination and design efforts to produce development that maintains the overall land use intensity 

and open space objectives of the city code and the Strategic Plan while departing from the strict 

application of dimensional standards found in traditional zoning districts.   

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 30.6+/- acre zoning area is located in Franklin County and is made up of 16 properties, some of 

which are vacant land and the others contain single family homes. This section of the Central College 

Road corridor and specifically this intersection serves as a transition between denser retail, residential 

and commercial development uses on the west side of 605 to more traditional residential land uses on 

the east side. Some examples of this include the original sections of the New Albany Business Park 

with the old discover building to the north, multi-family residential development to the west in 

Columbus and traditional single-family residential development to the east in New Albany.  
 

III. PLAN REVIEW 

Planning Commission’s review authority of the zoning amendment application is found under C.O. 

Chapters 1107.02 and 1159.09. Upon review of the proposed amendment to the zoning map, the 

Commission is to make recommendation to City Council. Staff’s review is based on city plans and 

studies, proposed zoning text, and the codified ordinances. Primary concerns and issues have been 

indicated below, with needed action or recommended action in underlined text.  

 

Per Codified Ordinance Chapter 1111.06 in deciding on the change, the Planning Commission shall 

consider, among other things, the following elements of the case: 

(a) Adjacent land use. 

(b) The relationship of topography to the use intended or to its implications. 

(c) Access, traffic flow. 

(d) Adjacent zoning. 

(e) The correctness of the application for the type of change requested. 

(f) The relationship of the use requested to the public health, safety, or general welfare. 

(g) The relationship of the area requested to the area to be used. 

(h) The impact of the proposed use on the local school district(s). 

 

Per Codified Ordinance Chapter 1159.08 the basis for approval of a Preliminary Development Plan in 

an I-PUD shall be: 

(a) That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 

applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

(b) That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan or portion 

thereof as it may apply; 

(c) That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 32 of 43 

(d) That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify the 

deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning Ordinance; 

(e) Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 

(f) Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such other 

facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density of dwelling units may not 

violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

(g) Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness to 

existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

(h) Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 

(i) Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development periphery; 

(j) Gross commercial building area; 

(k) Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 

(l) Spaces between buildings and open areas; 

(m) Width of streets in the project; 

(n) Setbacks from streets; 

(o) Off-street parking and loading standards; 

(p) The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi-phase 

developments; 

(q) The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 

(r) The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency's 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit (if 

required); 

(s) The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 

 

E. Engage New Albany Strategic Plan  

The site is located within the Employment Center base future land use district. In addition to providing 

strategic land use districts, the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan also includes focus areas to 

demonstrate how the recommendations outlined in the other sections of the strategic plan can be applied 

in the built environment.  This hamlet area is included in a focus area and the strategic plan 

recommends the creation of a mixed-use node around the Central College Road and SR 605 

intersection. 

 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan also identifies this general location where a hamlet could 

located in the city. The hamlet concept identifies an opportunity to introduce walkable retail and 

commercial uses with residential areas. The creation of this concept in the plan is in response to the 

significant input received from residents during the public outreach process of the plan where residents 

identified the lack of local dining and retail options in the city as a weakness and providing more of 

these options as a top priority for the community. The plan lists the following development standards 

for hamlets.  

• Street edges and streetscape treatments are reinforced. Alternate street typologies and reduced 

setbacks may be appropriate based on the pattern of development. 

• Hamlets need to incorporate public spaces like pocket parks or pedestrian corridors. These are 

gathering spaces for office employees and residents of the area.  

• Buildings may not be taller than three stories in height around the civic green, nor taller than 

two stories at the perimeter. 

• Hamlets should have a balance of neighborhood retail, commercial office, and residential uses.  

• All non-single-family development should front on the green. 

• A hamlet does not necessarily have to include residential uses if it is located near an area with 

established residences and has strong pedestrian connections to those existing neighborhoods. 

• Surface parking should be located to the rear of commercial and non-single-family uses. 

• Drive locations should be kept to a minimum and the placement of buildings should encourage 

pedestrian activity. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 33 of 43 

• Development proposals for identified hamlets should submit an overall master plan for the area 

showing how it fits together appropriately in terms of mobility, site layout, uses, and aesthetics. 

• Hamlet development is expected to go through the Planned Unit Development rezoning 

process. 

• Hamlet development should be high quality and built with a high level of attention to site and 

building design. 

• Hamlet development is expected to propose an architectural style that is both distinctive and 

complementary to New Albany’s character and brand. 

 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends the following standards as prerequisites for all 

development proposals in New Albany: 

• Development should meet setback recommendations contained in strategic plan. 

• Streets must be public and not gated. Cul-de-sacs are strongly discouraged. 

• Parks and open spaces should be provided, publicly dedicated and meet the quantity 

requirements established in the city’s subdivision regulations (i.e. 20% gross open space and 

2,400 sf of parkland dedication for each lot). 

• All or adequate amounts of open space and parkland is strongly encouraged to be provided on-

site. If it cannot be provided on-site, purchasing and publicly dedicating land to expand the 

Rocky Fork Metro Park or park space for the Joint Parks District is an acceptable alternative. 

• The New Albany Design Guidelines & Requirements for residential development must be met. 

• Quality streetscape elements, including an amenity zone, street trees, and sidewalks or leisure 

trails, and should be provided on both sides of all public streets. 

• Homes should front streets, parks and open spaces. 

• A residential density of 1 dwelling unit (du) per acre is required for all residential or a density 

of 3 du per acre for age restricted housing. 

o Higher density may be allowed if additional land is purchased and deed restricted. This 

type of density “offset” ensures that the gross density of the community will not be 

greater than 1 unit per acre. Any land purchased for use as an offset, should be within 

the NAPLS district or within the metro park zone. 

 

F. Zoning Text Overview and Intent 
The applicant’s intent is to develop a hamlet as envisioned in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. 

To achieve this goal, the text commits to the principles of the master planning process and holistic 

design which is a crucial component of the strategic plan within the zoning text. This zoning text 

recognizes the intrinsic relationship between the public and private realm to ensure the following 

general principles of the zoning district and the intent of a hamlet are met: 

• Providing a pedestrian friendly environment that places a high priority on walking and 

bicycling; 

• Creation of interesting and convenient destinations; 

• A commitment to respecting the natural environment; and 

• Using high quality architecture and design that emphasizes beauty, human comfort and creating 

a sense of place. 

 

To achieve these goals, the text commits to providing various master plans as part of the final 

development plan process including: 

• Overall site planning and associated proposed uses; 

• Cohesive streetscapes and perimeter landscaping; 

• Vehicular access and shared parking solution; 

• Bicycle access and shared parking solution;  

• Lighting; and 

• Signage (as needed). 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 34 of 43 

 

Areas where the text is not meeting these development standards are underlined in the staff report. A 

very detailed purpose and intent statement for the district can be found on the first two pages of the 

zoning text.  

 

G. Use, Site and Layout 
7. The site is generally located at the southwest and southeast corners of the New Albany 

Condit Road and Central College Road intersection. These exact site boundaries are 

identified in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan as a location for a hamlet/mixed use 

development pattern due to the transitional character of the general area.  

8. The proposed zoning district is Infill-Planned Unit Development (I-PUD) that will permit the 

construction of a hamlet style of development which contains a variety of commercial, retail, 

assisted living facility and residential (multi-family as well as single family detached and 

attached) uses. These permitted uses are broken up into six different subareas in the zoning 

text and illustrated on the preliminary development plan. The epicenter of the zoning district 

will be located in subarea 3, with a diversity of uses centered around green space. The table 

below provides a high-level overview of the uses permitted in each subarea. All non-

residential uses proposed in the text are only permitted to be located on the west side of New 

Albany Condit Road. 

 

Subarea Acreage Permitted Uses Conditional 

Uses 

Notes 

1 1.8+/- 

acres 

General Business 

Commercial District Uses 

found in the C-2 General 

Business District (C.O. 

1147.02) which permits 

office, general retail 

stores, personal service 

uses such as restaurants, 

banks, and beauty shops.  

Conditional 

uses 

permitted in 

C.O. 

1147.03 

Prohibited uses 

include funeral 

services, self-

service 

laundries, and 

gasoline service 

stations or retail 

convenience 

stores selling 

gasoline as an 

ancillary use. 

2 5.4+/- 

acres 

Max 280 multi-family 

Dwelling Units, private 

community center facility 

and home occupations 

 1, 2, and 3 

bedroom units 

permitted 

provided no 

more than 40% 

of units can 

have 2 

bedrooms and 

no more than 8 

units can have 3 

bedrooms 

3 9.1+/- 

acres 

Parks and open space, 

recreation facilities, 25 

residential “whimsical” 

cottages and office, retail, 

restaurant, and outdoor 

performances area uses 

None. Includes 

outdoor 

performance 

space and a 

public 8.5-acre 

Sugar Run Park.   

4 2.8+/- 

acres 

Max 25 single family 

attached residences  

One model 

home or 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 35 of 43 

leasing 

office 

5 6.5+/- 

acres 

Senior Living Facility 

Uses, supportive uses and 

office uses 

Daycares 

and 

preschools 

Includes 

assisted living 

facilities, 

memory care 

facilities, 

skilled nursing 

facilities, and 

independent 

living facilities.  

6 5.4+/- 

acres 

Max 35 single family 

attached and detached 

residences, one model 

home and home 

occupations 

One model 

home or 

leasing 

office 

 

 

9. The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan recommends a gross density of 1 dwelling unit per acre 

or up to 3 units per acre if the development is 100% age restricted. The city of New Albany’s 

codified ordinances does not define assisted/senior living facilities as a residential so city staff 

has not included it in the overall residential density calculations.  

o Between all subareas, the applicant proposes 365 residential units on 30.6 acres (gross 

acreage) resulting in a density of 11.93 units per acre (not including senior living 

facilities).  

o The Engage New Albany states that higher density may be allowed if additional land is 

purchased and deed restricted. This type of density “offset” ensures that the gross 

density of the community will not be greater than 1 unit per acre. Any land purchased 

for use as an offset, should be within the NAPLS district or within the metro park zone. 

The applicant states that there are currently no density credits available for purchase in 

the city and the applicant would be required to assemble a large amount of land to 

purchase in order to develop a hamlet as envisioned in the strategic plan. Further, the 

applicant states that in order to fully offset the density of the project they would have to 

purchase 335 acres of property in the school district which is more than what is 

currently available and they estimate that they would have to spend an additional $35 

million to offset the density if the land were available.  

o While the proposal is higher than the strategic plan’s recommended density since it is 

not providing an “offset”, city staff is supportive of the density since it is appropriate 

given the hamlet development pattern. The hamlet is located within a transitional area 

between Columbus and New Albany and the development pattern is consistent with the 

Central College corridor to the west.  

10. A school impact statement was submitted with the application. The applicant provided 

different student ratios for each housing type based on data collected from other similar 

projects including some of their own similar projects. The ratios are consistent with historical 

student impact statements for other residential developments in New Albany. Based on this 

estimation, the applicant projects that this development will have a net positive financial 

impact on the school district.  

11. The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan, hamlet development standards state that alternate 

street typologies and reduced setbacks may be appropriate based on the desired pattern of 

development. The text provides a 70 foot building and pavement setback from the centerline of 

Central College Road and New Albany Condit Road. Subarea 5 allows a zero-foot pavement 

setback and 25-foot primary building setback and 10-foot ancillary building setback from New 

Albany Condit Road right-of-way. The text contains a variety of other internal and perimeter 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 36 of 43 

boundary setbacks that take into consideration adjacent uses to provide an appropriate setback 

from those boundaries. There are minimal interior setbacks to ensure that a cohesive 

development is achieved where pedestrian connectivity between subareas is encouraged. The 

proposed setbacks are appropriate based on the desired development pattern of a hamlet and 

provide appropriate screening from adjacent residential uses where they exist.  

12. The zoning text states that all development within this area must be accessed from a public 

road. The text commits to providing right-of-way for Central College Road, New Albany 

Condit Road and all new roads in the development. Staff is supportive of the amounts 

provided as they ensure a proper streetscape with all typical amenities can be installed within 

them. The text commits to providing a master plan for all streetscape and perimeter 

landscaping plans as part of a future final development plan application.  

13. The zoning text states contains varying lot coverage requirements between 35% and up to 

90% based on each subarea. The lowest lot coverage amount is found in subarea 3 where a 

public park is proposed is permitted to be development and the highest is for the subarea 

where a multi-family building is permitted to be developed.    

 

H. Access, Loading, Parking  

7. The zoning district is located at the southwest and southeast corners of the Central College 

Road and State Route 605 intersection. As proposed, the zoning district will be accessed via 4 

new curb cuts along these corridors. The applicant proposes to connect into an existing private 

drive in Columbus where several commercial users exist such as Huntington Bank and Taco 

Bell. The text requires some of the new roads to be dedicated as public roads but allows the 

alleys to be private. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the text be revised to require 

all new streets and alleys to be publicly dedicated per the recommendations of the Engage New 

Albany strategic plan.   

8. A traffic impact study was completed and submitted by the developer. and the study 

recommends the following public street improvements: 

a. Addition of northbound right turn lane on 605 at Central College; 

b. Restriping Central College Road to add left turn lane into site for westbound traffic 

where it aligns with the Discover entrance.  

c. Street widening to accommodate various left turns on 605 for north and southbound 

traffic at the one new entry point into the development and at the entrance to the 

Enclave subdivision (Snider Loop).  

9. During the RFBA meeting, residents of the Enclave subdivision expressed concerns about 

making lefts out of their subdivision onto 605. The traffic impact study evaluated this and it 

does not advise alternative/additional improvements (i.e. roundabout or signal) at Snider Loop.  

The city traffic engineer has reviewed the traffic impact study’s evaluation and agrees with the 

findings based on the traffic volumes and speeds. The city traffic engineer comments: 

a. As part of this development a southbound left turn lane into Snider Loop will added 

which will increase safety for that turning movement in the Enclave subdivision.  

b. The city traffic engineer recommends additional analysis of the design of the Snider 

Loop and 605 intersection. The design of the intersection should be revised so the 

centerlines of Snider Loop and new street align to ensure there is no overlapping left 

turn movements. Staff recommends this be a condition of approval subject to the 

review and approval of the city traffic engineer.  

c. The current speed limit along this portion of State Route 605 where it intersects with 

Snider Loop is 45 mph. The city intends to work with the developer and ODOT to 

lower the posted speed limit to 35mph in conjunction with construction of the 

development. This will improve pedestrian safety and vehicle traffic turning left from 

Snider Loop onto State Route 605.  

10. Based on the findings of the traffic impact study, staff will work with the applicant to study the 

extent of the street widening along 605 relating to the turn lanes needed for the development. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 37 of 43 

Staff recommends this be a condition of approval subject to the review and approval of the city 

traffic engineer. 

11. The text requires 8-foot-wide, asphalt leisure trails to be installed along both Central College 

Road and New Albany Condit Road. The text commits to providing additional leisure trail and 

sidewalk connections throughout the zoning district in order to place a high priority on walking 

and bicycling, meeting an important strategic plan recommendation for this development type. 

The text permits the development of a new public road in subarea 5, along the southern 

boundary of the zoning text that will allow the installation of a 5 foot sidewalk to be installed 

on the north side of it. In order to be consistent with the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan 

roadway character classifications, the Leisure Trail Master Plan and city code requirements, 

staff recommends a condition of approval that the text be revised to require leisure trail or 

sidewalk to be installed on both sides of this road.  

12. The text commits to providing a comprehensive vehicle and bicycle parking plan as part of the 

first final development plan for the zoning district. The text states that the parking plan shall 

analyze peak uses and recommend the total number of parking spaces and their locations based 

on shared parking principles and ratios to provide adequate parking without “overparking” that 

would detract from the built environment and provide a comprehensive parking strategy for the 

zoning district.  

a. The text does contain specific parking space ratios for subarea 2.  

b. The text requires parking for the multi-family building in subarea 2 to be provided 

on the interior of the building with the following rates. The text permits a 

maximum of 8 three-bedroom units inside the multi-family building however 

parking requirements are not specified. Staff recommends a condition of approval 

that parking standards for three-bedroom units are added to the text or are included 

with the final development plan.  

i. 1.05 parking spaces for each studio unit. 

ii. 1.16 parking spaces for each one-bedroom unit 

iii. 1.64 spaces per two-bedroom unit.  

c. The text requires a minimum of one parking space for every 1,000 square feet 

contained in the community center/clubhouse in subarea 2. 

d. The text requires homes within subarea 4 to have a minimum one car garage and shall be 

required to have a minimum of one off-street parking spaces on their driveways. 

e. The text requires homes within subarea 6 to have a minimum one-car garage. 

 

I. Architectural Standards 

3. The hamlet development standards in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan state that hamlets 

are expected to propose an architectural style that is both distinctive and complementary to 

New Albany’s character and brand. Additionally, the plan recommends that hamlet 

development be of high quality and that a high level of attention is paid to building and site 

design. The text contains many requirements, restrictions and allowances regarding architecture 

unique to each subarea that vastly meet the intent of the strategic plan recommendations.  

4. The New Albany Design Guidelines and Requirements (DGRs) ensure residential and 

commercial development both sustain their quality and vibrancy over time. These guidelines 

have been developed by New Albany to ensure that the community enjoys the highest possible 

quality of architectural design that has made the community successful thus far. The text states 

that the DGRs will be applied to all subareas with the exception of subarea 3 due to the unique 

nature of that subarea and the fact that there are no governing DGR requirements for that 

development type. Subarea 3 is the epicenter of the development where the most activity is 

expected to take place and the text allows for the greatest amount of flexibility here to ensure a 

unique sense of place can be created.  

5. For all subareas, the text commits to meeting or exceeding the architectural standards of New 

Albany while enabling creativity in defined locations. Additionally, the text commits to 360-



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 38 of 43 

degree design for all buildings in the zoning district, meeting an important goal of the city. 

Character images for the intended architectural design of the zoning district are included in the 

submittal. More detailed architectural designs/renderings will be reviewed and approved as part 

of future final development plan applications.  

6. The hamlet development standards state that the maximum number of building stories, interior 

to the site is 3 and a maximum of two stories at the perimeter. The applicant is meeting this 

requirement for all subareas with the exception of subareas 2 and 6.  

a. Subarea two is where a multi-family building is permitted to be developed and the 

text allows a maximum height of 53 feet and four stories.  

b. Subarea 6 (located at southeast corner of 605 and Central College) permits a 

maximum of 3 stories.  

c. The Central College Road corridor has seen a significant amount of development 

since the creation of the Accord Plan. There are many existing examples along this 

corridor where 3-3.5 story buildings have been constructed.  

d. While taller than the strategic plan recommendations, there are other 3 and 4 story 

office buildings in the general area such as the Water’s Edge structures to the south 

along Walton Parkway so the development does not appear to be out of character 

for the corridor. The buildings in these two subareas will be located at the 

southwest and southeast corners of the Central College Road and State Route 605 

providing a strong architectural presence at these corners. The hamlet takes into 

consideration the surrounding heights of building by matching surrounding 

building heights along the edges and appropriately transitioning to the taller 

buildings at the corners and along public roads.  

7. The text permits the use of the following building materials and prohibits exposed concrete 

foundations.  

a. Brick and brick veneer 

b. Cementitious or composite siding 

c. Vinyl is permitted on building exteriors that are not visible from any road and 

surrounded by building facades on all sides and within subarea 5 if the Planning 

Commission approves it as part of a final development plan application.  

d. Metal panels, EIFS, wood and aluminum are permitted as trim or accent elements.  

8. The DGRs require active and operable doors to be installed along all public streets. The 

applicant is meeting this requirement with the exception of subarea 1 where single tenant 

buildings are not required to have one along Central College Road. The text does require 

building facades facing Central College Road to include an architectural feature that 

encourages pedestrian connectivity, meeting the spirit and intent of the DGR requirement.  

9. The text requires additional architectural details such as roof plans, garage door design/colors, 

dormer details, columns and cornice details to be submitted and reviewed as part of a final 

development plan application.  

10. The text requires rooftop screening for sight and sound for all subareas. 

 

G. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  
1. The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan emphasizes the importance of providing greenspace 

and promoting sustainability by protecting, preserving and enhancing natural features in these 

mixed-use areas. The Engage New Albany Plan’s Mixed Use (included with Hamlets) 

development standards state that an appropriate amount of open space to provide in hamlets is 

between 0.5 and 10 acres. The zoning district is bisected by the Sugar Run Creek. The applicant 

proposes to activate an 8.5-acre space around Sugar Run Creek as the center of the 

development and the text allows the applicant to install trails, benches and other amenities 

within this area to make it attraction for all of the New Albany community. This acreage 

amounts to 27% of the zoning district and is appropriate based on the mixed-use nature of the 

development of a hamlet. 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 39 of 43 

2. The Codified Ordinances subdivision regulations contain requirements about the provision of 

open space and parkland dedication which only considers typical suburban single-family 

development. The table below shows the required and proposed amounts. It is clear in the 

amounts shown below that city code never contemplated this type of development and it would 

be unreasonable to apply these suburban residential standards in this case. The applicant states 

that if they were to meet this standard, 86% of the site would have to be dedicated as parkland 

and open space. Additionally, if they were required to pay a fee-in-lieu they estimate that it 

would cost as much as $5.6 million which would completely destroy the economic viability of 

any Hamlet in the city.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Calculation based on 30.6 acres and 365 units. 

 

The zoning text states that this 8.47 acre space around Sugar Run Creek will enhanced and 

cleaned to improve its health and sustainability and provide a defining feature for this zoning 

district, substantially meeting the parks and open space recommendations for hamlet areas. The 

text states that this area will be dedicated to the city or maintained as open space with public 

access determined as part of a final development plan application. The text suggests that this 

space will be maintained by the city if is publicly owned and privately if owned privately or the 

business association. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the text be clarified to state 

that this area will be owned by the city and maintained by a private owner or business 

association in perpetuity.   

3. The text commits to and city code requires providing 3-inch caliper street trees along all public 

roads at an average rate of 30 feet on center. The applicant commits to providing a master 

perimeter and streetscape plan as part of a final development plan application. Additionally, the 

applicant will also be required to meet the minimum interior parking lot landscape requirements 

of city code and submit landscape plans with each final development plan application to be 

reviewed by the city landscape architect.  

4. The text contains screening requirements for dumpsters, loading and service areas that is 

consistent with city code.  

5. The zoning text exempts the applicant from providing the internal landscaping buffering 

requirements between dissimilar uses as required by C.O. 1171.05. Staff believes that this is 

appropriate due to the mixed-use development pattern of the zoning district.   

 

H. Utilities, Lighting & Signage 

2. The text requires all utilities to be installed underground.  
3. The text states that all security lighting be motion sensor type.  

4. The text states that street lighting shall not exceed 30 feet in height, that fully shielded cut off 

type fixtures be used and be consistent throughout the zoning district.  

5. The text requires standard New Albany street regulatory signage to be used and that 

any entry feature signage be subject to review and approval at the time of a final 

development plan application. 
6. The text requires a master sign plan to be submitted in conjunction with the fist final 

development plan for the zoning district and where this sign plan is silent, the city sign code 

C.O. 

Requirement 

Shown 

on 

PDP as 

Required 

(acres)* 

Provided 

(acres) 

Meets 

Code? 

 

1187.16 

Open Space 

Open 

Space 

6.12 See below No  

1189.15 

Parkland Dedication 

open 

Space 

20.11 See below No  

 Total 26.23 8.47   



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 40 of 43 

regulations will apply. Additionally, the text states that the intent for subarea 3 is to create a 

unique and creative sign package that will determine design, numbers and placement on 

buildings within the subarea.  

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan in accordance with the engineering related 

requirements of Code Section 1159.07(b)(3) and provided the following comments:  

1. Sugar Run is a FEMA studied stream (Map No. 39049C0180).  We recommend that the Stream 

Corridor Protection Zone (SCPZ) width be established in accordance with Chapter 1155 – 

Flood Damage Reduction.   

2. We will evaluate storm water management, sanitary sewer collection and roadway construction 

related details once construction plans become available 

 

 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

Basis for Approval: 
 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning application. The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan 

envisions the concept of a hamlet which is the intent of this zoning district. This concept was revived in 

the strategic plan based on public feedback the city collected from residents during the recent strategic 

planning process. Residents cited a lack of local dining and retail options as the city’s second greatest 

weakness and one of the top areas where the city should focus their efforts in the future. Additionally, 

residents expressed interest in adding a diversity of housing options to ensure that New Albany is a life-

span community.  

 

The proposal matches the city strategic plan’s land use recommendation and meets 11 out of 12 hamlet 

development standards found in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. The Engage Plan recommends 

buildings not be taller than three stories in height around the civic green, nor taller than two stories at 

the perimeter. While a portion of this development exceeds the height recommendations, the height and 

number of stories appears appropriate since it takes into consideration the surrounding environment by 

transitioning heights from neighboring properties. Moreover, the site plan, architectural commitments 

and requirements, landscaping and strong emphasis on pedestrian experience and connectivity equates 

to a development that is very desirable from a site and building design and planning perspective. 

 

The city’s parkland and open space requirements account for a traditional single-family subdivision. 

While the subdivision regulations technically apply to this site since it is creating new residential sites, 

it does not account for this type of Hamlet mixed-use development pattern recently established and 

recommended by the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. The development provides a substantial 

amount of passive open space by establishing Sugar Run Park and an active, central parkland where 

restaurants and performances will be located.  

 

The strategic plan identifies this site as one of two locations in the city where this type of hamlet 

development is appropriate given its location and the surrounding development context. Overall, the 

proposed densities and uses are appropriate due to the location of the zoning district along the Central 

College Road corridor which serves as a transitional area between denser residential and commercial 

development to the west and north to the typical suburban residential development that exist on the east 

side of 605. While the proposed density exceeds the strategic plan recommendations since it is not 

proposing an offset, it is appropriate given the desired development pattern of a hamlet. Moreover, the 

zoning text accounts for this transition by permitting single family attached and detached uses on the 

east side of 605, providing an appropriate transition to the denser uses that are permitted on the west of 

605.  

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 41 of 43 

Master planning and holistic design principles are crucial components of what has made the New 

Albany community so successful to date and the applicant commits to these principles. This plan and its 

design recognizes the intrinsic relationship between the public and private realms to ensure the 

following general principles of the zoning district are met: 

o Providing a pedestrian friendly environment that places a high priority on walking and 

bicycling; 

o Creation of interesting and convenient destinations; 

o A commitment to respecting the natural environment; and 

o Using high quality architecture and design that emphasizes beauty, human comfort and creating 

a sense of place.  

To achieve these goals, the applicant commits to providing various master plans as part of the final 

development plan process including a shared vehicular and bicycle parking, streetscape and perimeter 

landscaping, lighting and signage plans.  

 

The proposed rezoning accomplishes the following city code considerations found in C.O. 1111.06:  

 

1. The zoning amendment will result in a more comprehensive planned redevelopment of the area 

and will ensure compatibility between uses in the immediate area (1111.06(a)).  

2. The proposed zoning classification permits consistent uses found within other adjacent zoning 

districts (1111.06(b)).  

3. The zoning amendment application is an appropriate application for the request (1111.06(e)).  

4. The overall effect of the development advances and benefits the general welfare of the 

community (1111.06(f)).  

 

Staff recommends approval provided that the Planning Commission finds the proposal meets sufficient 

basis for approval. 

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for ZC-43-2021:  

 

To recommend approval to city council of zoning amendment application ZC-43-2021 based on the 

findings in the staff report with the following conditions.  

 

1. The text must be revised to require all new roads and alleys to be dedicated publicly.   

2. The final design and geometry of proposed curb cut, aligning with Snider Loop, is subject to 

staff approval in order to ensure proper turn movements are achieved. 

3. The text must be revised to require leisure trail or sidewalk to be installed on both sides of the 

proposed new public road within subarea 5. 

4. Parking standards for three-bedroom units in subarea 2 must be added to the text or are 

included with the final development plan.  

5. The text must be revised to state that the proposed Sugar Run Park will be owned by the city 

and maintained by a private owner or business association in perpetuity.   

6. The final lengths of street widening and roadway design along State Route 605, 

geometrics/design of the Snider Loop/605 intersection, and extent of the right turn lane from 

State Route 605 onto Central College be subject to the city traffic engineer’s review and 

approval. 

 



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 42 of 43 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: Google Earth 

  



 

21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes  Page 43 of 43 

 



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  1 of 8 

 

  
 

 

 
Planning Commission Staff Report 

July 21, 2021 Meeting 

 

 

VERIZON WIRELESS DATA CENTER 

FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 

 

 

LOCATION:  A portion of property generally located north of New Albany Road East 

and east of Souder Road (PID: 222-004464-00). 

APPLICANT:   Foresite Group LLC 

REQUEST: Final Development Plan   

ZONING:   Infill Planned Unit Development (I-PUD): Souder East Research and 

Information District, subarea 3 

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Employment Center 

APPLICATION: FDP-64-2021 

 

Review based on: Application materials received June 16 and July 9, 2021 

Staff report prepared by Chris Christian, Planner 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a final development plan for a proposed Verizon Wireless data center 

generally located north of New Albany Road East and east of Souder Road on a 14.33 acre site.  

 

This site is located within subarea 3 of the Souder East Research and Information I-PUD zoning 

district which was reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission on July 7, 2008 (ZC-04-

2008) and by City Council on July 15, 2008 (O-16-2008).  

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The 14.33 property is currently undeveloped. The zoning text permits uses included in OCD 

(Office Campus District) zoning district found in city code including administrative, business and 

professional offices, warehousing as an ancillary use and data centers. The Nationwide data 

center is located south of the property and Canine Companions to the west. There are residentially 

zoned and used properties to the north and east of the site.  

 

III. EVALUATION 

Staff’s review is based on New Albany plans and studies, zoning text, and zoning regulations. 

Primary concerns and issues have been indicated below, with needed action or recommended 

action in underlined text. Planning Commission’s review authority is found under Chapter 1159. 

 

The Commission should consider, at a minimum, the following (per Section 1159.08): 

a. That the proposed development is consistent in all respects with the purpose, intent and 

applicable standards of the Zoning Code; 

b. That the proposed development is in general conformity with the Strategic Plan/Rocky 

Fork-Blacklick Accord or portion thereof as it may apply; 

c. That the proposed development advances the general welfare of the Municipality; 

d. That the benefits, improved arrangement and design of the proposed development justify 

the deviation from standard development requirements included in the Zoning 

Ordinance; 

e. Various types of land or building proposed in the project; 



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  2 of 8 

f. Where applicable, the relationship of buildings and structures to each other and to such 

other facilities as are appropriate with regard to land area; proposed density may not 

violate any contractual agreement contained in any utility contract then in effect; 

g. Traffic and circulation systems within the proposed project as well as its appropriateness 

to existing facilities in the surrounding area; 

h. Building heights of all structures with regard to their visual impact on adjacent facilities; 

i. Front, side and rear yard definitions and uses where they occur at the development 

periphery; 

j. Gross commercial building area; 

k. Area ratios and designation of the land surfaces to which they apply; 

l. Spaces between buildings and open areas; 

m. Width of streets in the project; 

n. Setbacks from streets; 

o. Off-street parking and loading standards; 

p. The order in which development will likely proceed in complex, multi-use, multi- phase  

developments; 

q. The potential impact of the proposed plan on the student population of the local school 

district(s); 

r. The Ohio Environmental Protection Agency’s 401 permit, and/or isolated wetland permit 

(if required);  

s. The U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 404 permit, or nationwide permit (if required). 
 
It is also important to evaluate the PUD portion based on the purpose and intent. Per Section 
1159.02, PUD’s are intended to: 

a. Ensure that future growth and development occurs in general accordance with the 

Strategic Plan; 

b. Minimize adverse impacts of development on the environment by preserving native 

vegetation, wetlands and protected animal species to the greatest extent possible 

c. Increase and promote the use of pedestrian paths, bicycle routes and other non-vehicular 

modes of transportation; 

d. Result in a desirable environment with more amenities than would be possible through 

the strict application of the minimum commitment to standards of a standard zoning 

district; 

e. Provide for an efficient use of land, and public resources, resulting in co-location of 

harmonious uses to share facilities and services and a logical network of utilities and 

streets, thereby lowering public and private development costs; 

f. Foster the safe, efficient and economic use of land, transportation, public facilities and 

services; 

g. Encourage concentrated land use patterns which decrease the length of automobile 

travel, encourage public transportation, allow trip consolidation and encourage 

pedestrian circulation between land uses; 

h. Enhance the appearance of the land through preservation of natural features, the 

provision of underground utilities, where possible, and the provision of recreation areas 

and open space in excess of existing standards; 

i. Avoid the inappropriate development of lands and provide for adequate drainage and 

reduction of flood damage; 

j. Ensure a more rational and compatible relationship between residential and non-

residential uses for the mutual benefit of all; 

k. Provide an environment of stable character compatible with surrounding areas; and 

l. Provide for innovations in land development, especially for affordable housing and infill 

development. 

 

Engage New Albany Strategic Plan Recommendations 

The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan lists the following development standards for the 

Employment Center future land use category: 

1. No freeway/pole signs are allowed. 



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  3 of 8 

2. Heavy landscaping is necessary to buffer these uses from adjacent residential areas.  

3. Plan office buildings within the context of the areas, not just the site, including building 

heights within development parcels.  

4. Sites with multiple buildings should be well organized and clustered if possible.  

5. All office developments are encouraged to employ shared parking or be designed to 

accommodate it.  

6. All office developments should plan for regional stormwater management.  

7. All associated mechanical operations should be concealed from the public right-of-way 

and screened architecturally or with landscape in an appealing manner.  

8. Any periphery security should integrate with the existing landscape and maintain and 

enhance the character of the road.  

9. Combined curb cuts and cross-access easements are encouraged.  

10. The use of materials, colors and textures to break up large scale facades is required.  

 

A. Use, Site and Layout 

1. The applicant is proposing the first, 53, 726.2 +/- sq. ft. phase of a Verizon Wireless data 

center on the 14.33 acre site. The proposed use is appropriate for this location in the New 

Albany Business Park and is permitted in the zoning text. Any additional development 

will require a new final development plan application to be reviewed and approved by the 

Planning Commission. 

2. The Nationwide data center is located south of the property and the Canine Companions 

site to the west. There are residentially zoned and used properties located to the east and 

north of the development site.  

3. C.O. 1165.06(b)(1) and (2) require an 8 foot wide leisure trail to be installed along Souder 

Road and it is being met as there is an existing 8-foot-wide leisure trail along the site’s 

frontage.  

4. Zoning text section IV(E)(7) states that the maximum lot coverage is 70% which includes 

all proposed pavement and buildings. The applicant states that the current lot coverage 

will be 26.5% with the first phase of development and 58.6% at full build out, therefore 

this requirement is met.  

5. The PUD zoning text requires the following setbacks: 

 

Perimeter Boundary Required Setback Proposed Setback 

Souder Road 30-foot building and pavement 158+/- pavement  [requirement met] 

476.4+/- building [requirement met] 

Eastern Boundary 50-foot building and pavement 215.2 +/- pavement [requirement met] 

325.2 +/- building [requirement met] 

Northern Boundary 50-foot building and pavement 50 +/- pavement [requirement met] 

98 +/- building [requirement met] 

Southern Boundary 15-foot building and pavement 20 +/-     pavement [requirement met] 

326.4 +/- building [requirement met] 

 

6. The applicant indicates that the onsite stormwater will be conveyed to an onsite 

stormwater basin at the southwest corner of the site, adjacent to Souder Road.  

 

B. Access, Loading, Parking 

1. Zoning text section IV(G)(3) permits a maximum of one full service curb cut on Souder 

Road within this subarea and any additional curb cuts must be reviewed and approved by 

the Planning Commission as part of a final development plan application. The applicant 

proposes one curb cut along Souder Road thereby meeting this requirement however, any 

future additional curb cuts within this subarea will require Planning Commission 

approval. There will be a 24-foot-wide drive aisle, providing circulation around the entire 

building. 

2. The Engage New Albany Strategic Plan envisions a future public street connection along 

the north side of this site to connect into the existing portion of Souder Road and east to 



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  4 of 8 

connect to the existing Galdino Drive stub in the Upper Clarenton subdivision. This street 

connection and alignment will be evaluated with future rezoning and development plan 

submittals.  

3. City parking code section 1167.05(d)(18) states that one off street parking space is 

required for each employee on the main shift. There are typically 10 of employees on the 

main shift and the applicant is providing 49 parking spaces. Therefore this requirement is 

being met. The proposed parking spaces will be located in front of the building.  

4. According to C.O. 1167.06(a)(3) the applicant is required to provide 3 off street loading 

spaces and this requirement is being met with 6 provided on site.    

5. Per C.O. 1167.03(a) the minimum parking space dimensions required are 9 feet wide and 

19 feet long and the applicant is meeting this requirement. 

6. Per C.O. 1167.03(a) the minimum maneuvering lane width size is 22 feet for this 

development type. The applicant proposes to install a 24 foot maneuvering lane around 

the proposed building and parking areas therefore this requirement is being met.   

7. Zoning text section IV(G)(4) states that bicycle parking shall be provided within 

reasonable distances of all buildings as approved as part of a final development plan 

application. There are no proposed bicycle parking spaces on the plan and staff 

recommends that they be added near the front entrance to the site, final location subject to 

staff approval.  

 

 

C. Architectural Standards  

1. The zoning text states that all building elevations that are visible from public rights-of-

way shall receive similar treatment in terms of style, materials and design so such 

elevations are not of a lesser visual character than any other. Additionally, the text 

requires a comparable use of materials on all building elevations. All proposed building 

materials are being used on all elevations of the building, therefore these requirements are 

being met. The proposed building is designed in a simple, contemporary form and is 

consistent with other data centers in the immediate area.   

2. The zoning text permits the following exterior materials: 

• Traditional materials such as wood, stone, brick and concrete. Contemporary 

materials such as metal, aluminum, glass, hardiplank are also permitted. The text 

prohibits the use of mirrored or reflective glass and allows EIFS to be used for accent 

elements.  

• The building material requirements of the zoning text are being met. The applicant 

submitted a building material sample board along with proposed building elevations. 

The plans demonstrate that different colors of brick will be used as the primary 

building material and EIFS are used as accent elements for the cornice lines as well 

as above door entryways.  

3. Zoning text section IV(F)(1) states that the maximum building height is 45 feet and that 

architectural elements such as parapets and monitors may exceed this height limitation. 

The proposed building height is 20 feet therefore this requirement is being met.  

4. C.O. 1144.04(m) states that any external mechanical equipment shall be totally screened 

form all public roads and/or adjacent properties from ground level in a manner that 

provided 100% opacity screening, including rooftop equipment. There is proposed 

ground mounted equipment located adjacent to the building and the applicant proposes to 

install a screen wall around the perimeter of the building at varying heights to provide 

100% opacity screening. There are no rooftop mechanical units shown on the submitted 

plans.  

• In more recent employment center zoning texts, the Planning Commission has 

included additional requirements that such screening shall be provided for sight and 

sound for mechanical equipment. In preliminary meetings with the applicant, they 

indicate that the ground mounted equipment will also be enclosed within a container 

that will buffer the sound generated. Based on the information provided by the 

applicant and the addition of a ground screen wall, it appears that the typical New 



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  5 of 8 

Albany Business Park requirements are being met however, staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the applicant provide the height of the proposed ground 

mounted and any roof mounted mechanical equipment in relation to the height of the 

proposed screen walls and that they be 100% screened for sight and sound.  

5. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(6) states that all visible elevations of a building must receive 

similar treatments in style, materials and design so that no visible side is of a lesser 

character than any other. The applicant is meeting this requirement by using the same 

materials on all building elevations.  

6. DGR Section 6(I)(A)(12) states that buildings shall have active an operable front doors 

along all public and private streets. The building is designed with an active and operable 

front door along Souder Road therefore this requirement is being met.   

7. C.O. 1171.05(b) states that all trash and garbage container systems must be screened, not 

be located in front yards and meet the minimum required pavement setbacks. The 

applicant proposes to install a dumpster enclosure along the eastern boundary of the site 

at the rear of the building, within the pavement setbacks with the dumpster enclosure 

using the same brick that is used on the building. 

 

D. Parkland, Buffering, Landscaping, Open Space, Screening  

1. Per C.O. 1171.05(e), a minimum of one tree per 5,000 feet of ground coverage is 

required. The plans indicate a total ground coverage of 143,146 sq. ft., therefore 29 trees 

are required and the 29 are proposed to be installed near the parking lot and around the 

stormwater basin. The city landscape architect reviewed the proposal and recommends 

that the proposed tree planting around the stormwater basin be randomized in order to 

appear more natural and staff recommends that this be a condition of approval.  

2. Per C.O. 1171.06(a)(3) a minimum of one deciduous tree is required to be planted for 

every 10 parking spaces. There are 49 parking spaces shown on the plan, therefore 5 trees 

are required to be planted within the parking lot and 5 are proposed.  

3. Per zoning text section IV(H)(2)(A) one street tree is required to be planted every 30 feet 

on center along Souder Road and be a minimum of 2.5 to 3 inches in caliper. The 

property has 347.20 feet of frontage along Souder Road therefore 12 street trees are 

required to be planted (347.20/30= 11.57). The applicant proposes to install 11 street 

trees and staff recommends a condition of approval that a total of 12 street trees must be 

planted.   

4. Per C.O. 1171.06(a)(2) a minimum of 5% of the overall parking area must be landscaped. 

The applicant is exceeding this requirement by providing 5.83% landscape area within 

the parking areas.  

5. Per C.O. 1171.06(b) parking lots are required to be screened from primary streets, 

residential areas and open space by a minimum 3.5-foot-tall evergreen hedge or masonry 

wall and this requirement is met with a combination of landscape planting and a screen 

wall.  

6. Per C.O. 1171.05(C) requires landscape screening to be installed between commercial 

and residentially zoned properties, planted no closer than 3 feet to any property line that 

will provide 75% opacity screening and be 10 feet tall within 5 years of planting. There 

are residentially zoned properties along the along the northern and eastern boundaries of 

this site, therefore this requirement applies. It appears that this requirement is being met 

along the northern and eastern property lines where residentially zoned and used land 

abuts this property. There are existing trees and landscaping along the northwestern 

property line which is also residentially zoned and used and staff recommends that 

additional planting is added along this property line in order to achieve 75% opacity 

screening, subject to the review and approval of the city landscape architect.   

7. Zoning text IV(H)(3) states that a 6-foot-tall mound shall be installed along the northern 

border of this subarea along parcel number 220-000596 with evergreen and/or deciduous 

trees installed at a rate of 12 trees per 100 linear feet. This requirement is met as this was 

installed along the northern property line when Souder Road was extended.  



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  6 of 8 

8. The City Landscape Architect reviewed the proposal and provided the following 

comments. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the Landscape Architect’s 

comments are addressed, subject to staff approval.  

• New Albany zoning requires screening adjacent to residential properties. The 

screening must achieve 75% opacity within 5 years of installation. Install random 

massings of large deciduous shade trees and/or evergreen trees along the northern 

and eastern property lines to meeting this code requirement. Deciduous trees should 

be between 2-3 inch caliper at installation with no more than 50% being 2 inch 

caliper. Evergreen trees should be between 6-8 feet at installation with no more than 

50% being 6 feet tall.  

• Install random massing of large deciduous shade trees along and around the proposed 

retention pond and in front of mobile asset parking area for a more naturalized edge 

condition.  

• Include more diversity within the tree schedule. For deciduous trees: consider oaks, 

maples and beeches. For evergreens: consider spruce and pines. There is a preference 

for native species when possible.  

 

E. Lighting & Signage 

1. The applicant did not include any proposed signage as part of the application. Staff 

recommends a condition of approval that any future signage be subject to staff approval 

and must be the city sign code requirements.  

2. The zoning text contains various requirements related to onsite including but not limited 

to the following. The applicant did not submit a detailed photometrics plan for this 

specific site but provided examples from other Verizon data center sites. In order to 

ensure these requirements are met, staff recommends a condition of approval that a 

detailed photometric plan be submitted showing zero or near zero candle foot light 

intensity at the property lines and that all other zoning text requirements related to 

lighting are met.  

• Zoning text section IV(I)(1) requires all parking lot lights to be cut-off and downcast 

• Zoning text section IV(I)(3) requires all light poles to be no taller than 30 feet and be 

black or New Albany Green. 

• Per zoning text section IV(I)(7), flood lighting of buildings or landscaping is 

prohibited, except where required for employee security.  

 

 

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the application and provided the following comments. These 

comments can also be found in a separate memo attached to this staff report. Staff recommends a 

condition of approval that the comments of the city engineer are addressed, subject to staff 

approval.  

 

1. Refer to Exhibit A.  Add the notes and signature block depicted on this Exhibit to the 

cover sheet of the final development plan. 

2. We will evaluate storm water management, sanitary sewer collection and roadway 

construction related details once construction plans become available 

 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

 

Staff recommends approval of the Verizon Wireless data center final development plan as it 

meets the Employment Center development standards found in the Engage New Albany Strategic 

Plan. The proposed use is appropriate based on its location in the New Albany Business Park and 

close proximity to similar uses. The proposed building design is simple and contemporary, 

matching the design of other data centers in the immediate vicinity. There are residentially zoned 

and used properties to the north and east of the site and the applicant is providing appropriate 

screening along those property lines as required by city code.  



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  7 of 8 

 

As the New Albany Business Park has grown, the Planning Commission has included additional 

requirements in more recent zoning texts to ensure that screening for rooftop and ground mounted 

mechanical equipment is provided for both sight and sound particularly in areas where adjacent 

residential properties exist in order to be sensitive in transitioning areas. The applicant is 

committing to these principles and in addition to providing screen walls, the site has been 

designed in a way so that existing trees and landscape along property lines can be used to provide 

additional buffering between dissimilar uses meeting city code requirements. Staff is supportive 

of the tree preservation and has a condition of approval that additional landscaping be added to 

the area, if needed, to ensure the screening requirements are met. The city landscape architect will 

review the landscape plan to ensure the properties lines to the north and east also meet the 75% 

opacity screening requirements.   

 

 

V.  ACTION 

Should the Planning Commission find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 

following motions would be appropriate:  

 

Move to approve final development plan application FDP-64-2021, subject to the following 

conditions: 

1. Any additional development will require a new final development plan application to 

be reviewed and approved by the Planning Commission.  

2. All ground mounted and rooftop equipment must be screened 100% for sight and 

sound.  

3. Bicycle parking must be added near the front entrance to the site, final location subject 

to staff approval.  

4. Landscape screening must be added to the northwest property line that achieves 75% 

opacity screening, subject the review and approval of the city landscape architect.  

5. Tree planting around the stormwater basin must be naturalized.  

6. A total of 12 street trees must be installed along Souder Road.  

7. The city landscape architect comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval.  

8. Any future site signage is subject to staff approval.  

9. A detailed photometrics plan must be submitted showing zero or near zero candle foot 

light intensity along all property lines and all other zoning text lighting requirements 

must be met.  

10. The city engineer comments must be addressed, subject to staff approval.   

 

Approximate Site Location 



PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021  8 of 8 

 
Source: Google Earth 



Ci 
 

 

 

City of New Albany 
99 West  Main Street 
New Albany, Ohio 43054 

MEMO 

 

         404.531-01 
         July 7, 2021 
To:  Christopher Christian       
 Engineering Manager 
  
From:  Ed Ferris, P.E., P.S., City Engineer      Re: Verizon  – FDP 
By: Jay M. Herskowitz, P.E., BCEE                                                               

 
 
  
We reviewed the referenced submittal in accordance with Code Sections 1159.07 (b)(3) FDP.  

Our review comments are as follows: 

1. Refer to Exhibit A.  Add the notes and signature block depicted on this Exhibit to the 

cover sheet of the final development plan. 

2. We will evaluate storm water management, sanitary sewer collection and roadway 

construction related details once construction plans become available 

 

 
EPF/JMH 
 
 
 
 
cc:   
 
 
 









1515 Des Peres Road, Suite 200, Saint Louis, Missouri 63131 - 314.997.6111 - www.trileaf.com  

 

June 18, 2021 
 
Mr. Kevin Wooldridge 
Verizon Wireless 
7575 Commerce Court 
Lewis Center, OH 43035 
 
Subject: Verizon Data Center – Natural Water Features Statement  
 
Dear Mr. Wooldridge, 
 
This letter serves to inform Verizon Wireless and the City of New Albany of environmental conditions associated 
with the purchase of an approximately 14.33-acre area (the ‘Property’) of the Franklin County parcel # 222-004464-
00 which is intended for development as the Verizon Data Center located northwest of the intersection of New 
Albany Road East and Souder Road in the City of New Albany, Franklin County, Ohio. The property currently 
consists of land used for agricultural row cropping. 
 
According to readily available historical aerial photographs and topological maps dating back to 1938, the Property 
has only been used for agricultural purposes. No stressed vegetation suggesting chemical release or extended periods 
of water saturation were observed in any of the historical aerial photographs or during site reconnaissance. 
 
At the time of site reconnaissance on February 24, 2021, some areas of the Property were snow-covered and pooled 
water was observed along the eastern boarder of the Property. Based on the historical imagery, this water was 
considered to be snow-melt. The entirety of the Property was observed to contain corn stalks from the previous 
year’s crop. No evidence of obligate hydrophytic vegetation was observed within the Property boundaries. 
 
As part of the Phase I Environmental Site Assessment (Phase I ESA) prepared by Trileaf dated March 15, 2021, the 
US Fish and Wildlife Services’ National Wetland Inventory map was reviewed for the area of the Property. No 
wetlands or state open waters were identified within 300 feet of the Property.  
 
Additionally, the Phase I ESA afore mentioned reviewed soil data for the Property. The primary soils underlying the 
Property are considered Bennington soils. Although Bennington soils are somewhat poorly drained, the soils beneath 
the Property do not meet hydric criteria. 
 
Based on the above data and observations, Trileaf does not consider the Property to contain any jurisdictional 
wetlands or streams and therefore did not consult with the US Army Corps of Engineers or Ohio EPA regarding any 
permitting.  
 
Trileaf appreciates this opportunity to be of service to Verizon Wireless. If you have any questions or comments, 
please contact me at 314-997-6111 or j.munsch@trileaf.com. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 

Joy Munsch 
Project Manager 
Trileaf Corporation 









































S85°56'17"E 340.83'

N
04

°0
1'

55
"E

 3
47

.3
8'

N86°21'43"W 1008.17'

N
03

°2
4'

15
"E

 4
20

.7
6'

S85°41'59"E 664.23'

S
03

°2
7'

00
"W

 7
57

.9
3'

P.O.B.

CRAIG F. SRBA & ANNA M. SRBAPIN: 220-000596DEED: O.R. 2276A15

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC

SI NALL1 LLC

K
A

R
E

N
 L

. B
A

IL
Y

P
IN

: 2
22

-0
04

35
9

D
E

E
D

: O
.R

. 1
39

68
F0

1

MONICA MORGAN WHITEHEADPIN: 220-000934DEED: IN. 199303020078152

MORGAN N. WHITEHEADPIN: 220-002157DEED: IN. 201509300138096

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 D
E

D
IC

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
T 

2
P

LA
T 

B
O

O
K

 1
15

, P
A

G
E

 5

SO
U

D
E

R
 R

O
A

D
(6

0'
 P

U
B

L
IC

 R
.O

.W
.)

PROPOSED DETENTION POND

15' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

(C
IT

Y)

50' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

50' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

12
5'

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K
(N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y 
G

R
O

U
P)

24
'

20
'

24'

8
8

28
'

24
'

PROPOSED
BUILDING
±53,726.2 SF
FFE = 1060.0

MOBILE ASSET
PARKING AREA

10

11

D

19
'

24
'

19
'

19' 24' 17.5'

24'

R174'

R150'
R174'

24'

R150'40
'

20
'

70' VERIZON SETBACK

70' VERIZON SETBACK

70
' V

ER
IZ

O
N

 S
ET

BA
C

K

10
0'

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 S

ET
BA

C
K

10
0'

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 S

ET
BA

C
K

P
LA

T 
B

O
O

K
 1

15
, P

A
G

E
7 

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

D
E

D
IC

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
T 

1

28'

PROPOSED CONCRETE
EQUIPMENT PAD (TYP.)

10'X20' MOBILE ASSET
PARKING

10'X40' MOBILE
ASSET
PARKING

PROPOSED CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

HEAVY DUTY
CONCRETE PAVING

STANDARD DUTY
CONCRETE PAVING

PROPOSED CURB TO TIE IN
AND MATCH  EXISTING CURB

(TYP.)

EXISTING CURB TO BE
REMOVED  AND EXISTING
ASPHALT TO BE SAWCUT

TO MEET EDGE FOR
DRIVEWAY INSTALLATION

PROPOSED 2'
CURB AND GUTTER

HEAVY DUTY
ASPHALT PAVING
(TYP.)

EXISTING
PROPERTY LINE
(TYP.)

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
(SEE MEP PLANS FOR
DETAILS)

PROPOSED CONCRETE
EQUIPMENT PAD (TYP.)

PROPOSED SECURITY
FENCE (TYP.)

PROPOSED
CROSSWALK

STRIPING (TYP.)

PROPOSED CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

(TYP.)

PROPOSED DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL
PLANS FOR DETAILS)

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
SCREEN WALL (SEE
ARCHITECTURAL  PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

PROPOSED SCREEN WALL
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL

PLANS FOR DETAILS)

PROPOSED SECURITY GATE

PROPOSED SECURITY GATE

PROPOSED GENERATORS
(SEE MEP PLANS FOR

DETAILS)

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
SCREEN WALL

(SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

FUTURE GENERATORS
(SEE MEP PLANS FOR

DETAILS)

FUTURE EQUIPMENT
(SEE MEP PLANS FOR
DETAILS)

PROPOSED SECURITY GATE

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
SCREEN WALL
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL
PLANS FOR DETAILS)

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
SCREEN WALL

(SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
SCREEN WALL
(SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS
FOR DETAILS)

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER ROAD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: K:\908.019 Verizon New Albany, OH\DWG\C100 Site plan.dwg, 7/9/21 at 11:19 AM By CFISHER - Last Printed: 7/9/21 at 12:34 PM By Cal Fisher

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

Foresite Group, LLC
2101 Magnolia Avenue South, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35205

o | 205.397.0370
f | 944.272.0997

w | www.fg-inc.net

PROJECT NO: 

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

685863-21-01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04-02-21

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y 

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D

SO
U

D
ER

 R
D

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
H

IO
 4

30
54

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

05-14-21

NRS

ZR

CTF

ZR

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

GENERAL NOTES

1. TOTAL SITE AREA: 14.33 ACRES

2. DISTURBED AREA: 9.98 AC

3. CURRENT ZONING: INFILL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

4. LOT COVERAGE
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE = 70%
DAY 1 LOT COVERAGE = 26.5%
ULTIMATE (FUTURE) LOT COVERAGE = 58.6%

5. BUILDING SETBACKS :
FRONT SETBACK =                    50 FT (LOCAL) 150 FT (BUSINESS PARK)
100 FT (VERIZON)
SIDE SETBACK (SOUTH) =       15 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)
SIDE SETBACK (NORTH) =       50 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)
REAR SETBACK =                       50 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)

6. ELEVATIONS
MAX BUILDING HEIGHT: 20.0'
TRANSFORMER AND ACCU SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (BLUE): 8.0'
GENERATOR SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (RED): 26.0'
AHU SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (GREEN): 14.0'
MOBILE ASSET PARKING SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (ORANGE): 10.0'
*MOBILE ASSET SCREEN WALL HEIGHT TO BE FINALIZED UPON

   EQUIPMENT DESIGN

7. PARKING
EMPLOYEES ON MAIN SHIFT: 10
PARKING REQUIRED: (1 SPACE PER EMPLOYEE ON MAIN SHIFT): 10
PROPOSED PARKING: 49 SPACES

- EMPLOYEE/VISITOR PARKING PROVIDED: 37
- MOBILE EQUIPMENT PARKING PROVIDED: 12
- HANDICAP PARKING REQUIRED: 2 SPACES
- HANDICAP PARKING PROVIDED: 2 SPACES

8. PROPOSED LAND USE: TELECOMMUNICATIONS

9. UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION SYSTEM PLANS AND PERMIT
APPLICATION WILL BE PREPARED BY A LICENSED IRRIGATOR AND
WILL BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION.

DescriptionIdentifier DescriptionIdentifier

PARTIAL SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

7

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED FENCE

BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACKS

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

PARKING COUNT

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED ACCESS KEYPAD

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVING

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT

5' 20' 40' 80'1"=40'-0"
Drawing:

Detail:
Scale:

NCIVIL SITE PLAN
01
C100

CIVIL SITE PLAN

C100

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR                                  DATE:

APPROVALS:

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT INCLUDES THE
CONSTRUCTION OF ONE 53,800 SQUARE FOOT 1-STORY DATA
CENTER.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
THE STORM WATER FOR THIS PROJECT WILL BE CONTROLLED
BY THE PROPOSED POND ON THE SOUTHWEST SIDE OF THE
SITE. FINAL CALCULATIONS WILL BE SUBMITTED FOR THE
POND DURING THE FINAL ENGINEERING APPROVAL PROCESS.

MONUMENTATION
MONUMENTATION WILL BE SET PRIOR TO COMPLETION OF
CONSTRUCTION.

VICE CHAIR OR DESIGNEE                                          DATE:

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER                                        DATE:

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR                                        DATE:

EQUIPMENT HEIGHTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
K



S85°56'17"E 340.83'

N
04

°0
1'

55
"E

 3
47

.3
8'

N86°21'43"W 1008.17'

N
03

°2
4'

15
"E

 4
20

.7
6'

S85°41'59"E 664.23'

S
03

°2
7'

00
"W

 7
57

.9
3'

P.O.B.

CRAIG F. SRBA & ANNA M. SRBAPIN: 220-000596DEED: O.R. 2276A15

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC

SI NALL1 LLC

K
A

R
E

N
 L

. B
A

IL
Y

P
IN

: 2
22

-0
04

35
9

D
E

E
D

: O
.R

. 1
39

68
F0

1

MONICA MORGAN WHITEHEADPIN: 220-000934DEED: IN. 199303020078152

MORGAN N. WHITEHEADPIN: 220-002157DEED: IN. 201509300138096

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 D
E

D
IC

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
T 

2
P

LA
T 

B
O

O
K

 1
15

, P
A

G
E

 5

SO
U

D
E

R
 R

O
A

D
(6

0'
 P

U
B

L
IC

 R
.O

.W
.)

PROPOSED DETENTION POND

15' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

(C
IT

Y)

50' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

50' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

12
5'

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K
(N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y 
G

R
O

U
P)

24
'

20
'

24'

8
8

28
'

24
'

PROPOSED
BUILDING
±53,726.2 SF
FFE = 1060.0

MOBILE ASSET
PARKING AREA

10

11

D

19
'

24
'

19
'

19' 24' 17.5'

24'

R174'

R150'
R174'

24'

R150'40
'

20
'

70' VERIZON SETBACK

70' VERIZON SETBACK

70
' V

ER
IZ

O
N

 S
ET

BA
C

K

10
0'

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 S

ET
BA

C
K

10
0'

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 S

ET
BA

C
K

P
LA

T 
B

O
O

K
 1

15
, P

A
G

E
7 

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

D
E

D
IC

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
T 

1

28'
97

.4
8'

149.53'

11'

12.5'

10.34' 4.63'

45
.7

5'

31'

11
'

5'
11

'

R5'

474.04'

24.79'

14
.5

7'

14
.5

1'

32
6.

27
'

373.21'

25
4.

67
'

30.00'

R25'

R50'

R50'

R7
0'

50.36'

25
6.

46
'

R150'

R174'

R3'

R3
'

R3'

R12'

R12
'

R3'

R3'

R150'

R30'

R1
22

'

R9
8'

R1
50

'

R50
'

R50'

R50
'

R50'

R50'

R
80'

R80'

R
3'

R3'

R50
'

R50'

R3'

R3'R3'

R3
'

34.71'

27
.2

2'

17.31'

13
.5

7'

R25
'

R50'

R
15

'

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER ROAD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: K:\908.019 Verizon New Albany, OH\DWG\C101 Dimension Plan.dwg, 7/9/21 at 11:19 AM By CFISHER - Last Printed: 7/9/21 at 12:35 PM By Cal Fisher

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

Foresite Group, LLC
2101 Magnolia Avenue South, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35205

o | 205.397.0370
f | 944.272.0997

w | www.fg-inc.net

PROJECT NO: 

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

685863-21-01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04-02-21

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y 

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D

SO
U

D
ER

 R
D

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
H

IO
 4

30
54

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

05-14-21

NRS

ZR

CTF

ZR

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

GENERAL NOTES

5' 20' 40' 80'1"=40'-0"
Drawing:

Detail:
Scale:

NCIVIL SITE DIMENSION PLAN
01
C101

DescriptionIdentifier DescriptionIdentifier

PARTIAL SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING BOLLARD

PROPOSED PARKING COUNT

PROPOSED ACCESS KEYPAD

9

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

PROPOSED FENCE

BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACKS

CIVIL SITE DIMENSION PLAN

C101

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVING

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR                                  DATE:

APPROVALS:

VICE CHAIR OR DESIGNEE                                          DATE:

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER                                        DATE:

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR                                        DATE:

EQUIPMENT HEIGHTS1. TOTAL SITE AREA: 14.33 ACRES

2. DISTURBED AREA: 9.98 AC

3. CURRENT ZONING: INFILL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

4. LOT COVERAGE
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE = 70%
DAY 1 LOT COVERAGE = 26.5%
ULTIMATE (FUTURE) LOT COVERAGE = 58.6%

5. BUILDING SETBACKS :
FRONT SETBACK =                    50 FT (LOCAL) 150 FT (BUSINESS PARK)
100 FT (VERIZON)
SIDE SETBACK (SOUTH) =       15 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)
SIDE SETBACK (NORTH) =       50 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)
REAR SETBACK =                       50 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)

6. ELEVATIONS
MAX BUILDING HEIGHT: 20.0'
TRANSFORMER AND ACCU SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (BLUE): 8.0'
GENERATOR SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (RED): 26.0'
AHU SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (GREEN): 14.0'
MOBILE ASSET PARKING SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (ORANGE): 10.0'
*MOBILE ASSET SCREEN WALL HEIGHT TO BE FINALIZED UPON

   EQUIPMENT DESIGN

7. PARKING
EMPLOYEES ON MAIN SHIFT: 10
PARKING REQUIRED: (1 SPACE PER EMPLOYEE ON MAIN SHIFT): 10
PROPOSED PARKING: 49 SPACES

- EMPLOYEE/VISITOR PARKING PROVIDED: 37
- MOBILE EQUIPMENT PARKING PROVIDED: 12
- HANDICAP PARKING REQUIRED: 2 SPACES
- HANDICAP PARKING PROVIDED: 2 SPACES

8. PROPOSED LAND USE: TELECOMMUNICATIONS

9. UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION SYSTEM PLANS AND PERMIT
APPLICATION WILL BE PREPARED BY A LICENSED IRRIGATOR AND
WILL BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT INCLUDES THE
CONSTRUCTION OF ONE 53,800 SQUARE FOOT
1-STORY DATA CENTER.

STORMWATER MANAGEMENT
THE STORM WATER FOR THIS PROJECT WILL BE
CONTROLLED BY THE PROPOSED POND ON THE
SOUTHWEST SIDE OF THE SITE. FINAL
CALCULATIONS WILL BE SUBMITTED FOR THE
POND DURING THE FINAL ENGINEERING APPROVAL
PROCESS.

MONUMENTATION
MONUMENTATION WILL BE SET PRIOR TO
COMPLETION OF CONSTRUCTION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
K



1052

1053 10
54

10
54

1053

1052

1051

1051

1050

1055

1050
104910481047

10
52

10
52

1053

10
53

1052

1058
1057

10561055

1053
10

54

10
55

10
56

1057

1056

1055

1058

1054

1054
10551056

1057

1056 1057

1058

1059

1056

1056

1057

10
57 10

58

1059

10
60

10
57

10
57

10
58

1057

1057

1057

1056

10
57

10
56

10
55

10
54

1057

1056

1055

1056

1057

1058
1059

1060

1061

1053

10
52 10

53

1057

W
W W WWW

W
W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WWW W

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG/T

UG/T
UG/T

UG/T
UG/T

SO
U

D
E

R
 R

O
A

D
(6

0'
 P

U
B

L
IC

 R
.O

.W
.)

PROPOSED DETENTION POND

W W W W W W W W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W W W W W

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM

PROPOSED
BUILDING
±53,726.2 SF
FFE = 1060.0

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WM
WM

MOBILE ASSET
PARKING AREA

D

28'

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

10
50

10
50

10
55

10
55

1053

1049

1054

10
54

1051

1054

1054

10
54

1055
1055

1057

1057

10
58

10
57

10
58 10

59

1059

1059
1059

10
59

1059

10
58

10
59

1059

10
57

1058

10
59

10
59

1059

10
57

1059

1057

10
56

10
56

10
57

10
57

1057

1056

10
57

10
58

1060.00

1060.00

1060.00
1060.00

PROPOSED CATCH
BASIN (TYP.)

PROPOSED STORM
LINE (TYP.)

PROPOSED
OUTLET CONTROL
STRUCTURE

PROPOSED TIE-IN TO
EXISTING STORM

STRUCTURE

PROPOSED DRY EXTENDED
DETENTION POND WITH MICRO

FOREBAYS TO PROVIDE
STORMWATER DETENTION  AND

WATER QUALITY PER LOCAL  AND
STATE REQUIREMENTS. POND TO BE

SIZED TO ACCOMMODATE  FUTURE
ANTICIPATED BUILD-OUT. 10561055

10
56

10
55

1057

STORM STUB-OUT
FOR FUTURE LINE
EXTENSION

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER ROAD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: K:\908.019 Verizon New Albany, OH\DWG\C130 Grading & Drainage Plan.dwg, 7/8/21 at 5:33 PM By CFISHER - Last Printed: 7/9/21 at 12:36 PM By Cal Fisher

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

Foresite Group, LLC
2101 Magnolia Avenue South, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35205

o | 205.397.0370
f | 944.272.0997

w | www.fg-inc.net

PROJECT NO: 

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

685863-21-01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04-02-21

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y 

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D

SO
U

D
ER

 R
D

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
H

IO
 4

30
54

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

05-14-21

NRS

ZR

CTF

ZR

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

DescriptionIdentifier DescriptionIdentifier

PARTIAL SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONSGENERAL NOTES

XXXX.XX

XXXX.XX

XXX
XXX

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING CONTOUR

EXISTING STORM DRAIN

EXISTING SOIL TYPE DELINEATION LINE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL LINE

EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING FIBER OPTIC LINE

EXISTING UTILITY EASEMENT LINE

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

PROPOSED CONTOUR

PROPOSED STORM DRAIN

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL DUCT BANK

LOD LOD

UG/E UG/E

W W

SS SS

FOC

7

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING BOLLARD

EXISTING SPOT

PARKING COUNT

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED ACCESS KEYPAD

PROPOSED LIGHT POLE

PROPOSED SPOT

CIVIL GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN

C130

1. SEE SHEET C200 FOR STORM SEWER PROFILES AND STORM PIPE SCHEDULE.

2. ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE SHOWN AT THE EDGE OF PAVEMENT UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED.

3. ALL HEAD WALL SECTIONS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED TO BE FLUSH WITH THE
EXISTING DITCH BANK AND PROPOSED EMBANKMENT SLOPES.

4. MAXIMUM CUT OR FILL SLOPES IS 3H:1V.

5. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE AS-BUILT SURVEY OF ALL STORMWATER BMPS,
INCLUDING TOPOGRAPHY, STORM STRUCTURE LOCATION AND INVERTS, PIPE SIZE
AND MATERIAL, OUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURE, AND LIMITS AND DEPTH OF
ENGINEERED SOIL.

6. PLANS ARE DRAFT ONLY. NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION.

5' 20' 40' 80'1"=40'-0"
Drawing:

Detail:
Scale:

NCIVIL GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
01
C130

SITE ANALYSIS

1. AREA DISTURBED: 9.98  AC.

2. TOTAL CUT:

3. TOTAL FILL:

4. TOPSOIL:

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVING

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR                                  DATE:

APPROVALS:

VICE CHAIR OR DESIGNEE                                          DATE:

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER                                        DATE:

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR                                        DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
K



W
W W WWW

W
W W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WWW W

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG/T

UG/T
UG/T

UG/T
UG/T

SO
U

D
E

R
 R

O
A

D
(6

0'
 P

U
B

L
IC

 R
.O

.W
.)

PROPOSED DETENTION POND

SAN MH#1
RIM ELEVATION = 1057.83
NOT ACCESSIBLE

W W W W W W W W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W W W W W

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM
FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM

FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM FM

PROPOSED
BUILDING
±53,726.2 SF
FFE = 1060.0

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM
FM

FM

FM

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

WM
WM

MOBILE ASSET
PARKING AREA

D

28'

TIE-IN TO EXISTING
10" SANITARY
SEWER STUB

PROPOSED 8" PVC
SANITARY SEWER

LINE (TYP.)

PROPOSED
SANITARY SEWER

MANHOLE (TYP.)

EXISTING  FIRE
HYDRANT

PROPOSED 6" FIRE
LINE

PROPOSED 2"
DOMESTIC LINE

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

PROPOSED 6"
VAULT

PROPOSED 2"
VAULT

PROPOSED 12"x6"
TAPPING SLEEVE

AND VALVE

PROPOSED 6"
VALVE

PROPOSED 2"
VALVE

PROPOSED 6"x2"
TEE

6" SANITARY
SEWER STUB FOR
FUTURE USE

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER ROAD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: K:\908.019 Verizon New Albany, OH\DWG\C140 Utility Plan.dwg, 7/8/21 at 5:34 PM By CFISHER - Last Printed: 7/9/21 at 12:37 PM By Cal Fisher

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

Foresite Group, LLC
2101 Magnolia Avenue South, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35205

o | 205.397.0370
f | 944.272.0997

w | www.fg-inc.net

PROJECT NO: 

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

685863-21-01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04-02-21

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y 

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D

SO
U

D
ER

 R
D

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
H

IO
 4

30
54

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

05-14-21

NRS

ZR

CTF

ZR

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

GENERAL NOTES

DescriptionIdentifier DescriptionIdentifier

PARTIAL SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

W W

SS SS

GAS

EXISTING PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING FIBER OPTIC EASEMENT

EXISTING UTILITY EASEMENT

EXISTING TREE LINE

EXISTING FENCE LINE

EXISTING STORM WATER LINE

EXISTING WATER LINE

EXISTING SANITARY LINE

EXISTING GAS LINE

EXISTING RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED RETAINING WALL

PROPOSED SCOPE LIMITS

PROPOSED LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

PROPOSED TREE FENCE

PROPOSED TREE LINE

PROPOSED FENCE

PROPOSED ELECTRICAL DUCT BANK

PROPOSED STORM DRAINAGE PIPE

PROPOSED WATER LINE

PROPOSED SANITARY SEWER LINE

PROPOSED FIBER OPTIC LINE

LOD LOD

EXISTING OVER HEAD POWER

EXISTING UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL LINE

EXISTING FIBER OPTIC CABLE LINE

EXISTING COMMUNICATION LINE

EXISTING POWER LINE

OHP OHP

UG/E UG/E

FOC

T

W W

SS SS

7

EXISTING LIGHT POLE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING BOLLARD

EXISTING ELECTRICAL BOX

PARKING COUNT

PROPOSED BOLLARD

PROPOSED ACCESS KEYPAD

PROPOSED LIGHT POLE

FOC FOC

CIVIL UTILITY PLAN

C140

POW

1. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY LOCATION AND DEPTH OF ALL EXISTING UTILITIES TO THEIR
SATISFACTION PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION.

2. DURING CONSTRUCTION, CONTRACTOR TO ENSURE UTILITY SERVICE TO EXISTING
BUILDINGS ARE NOT INTERRUPTED.

3. ALL PROPOSED UTILITIES ARE TO BE INSTALLED UNDERGROUND INCLUDING ELECTRIC,
TELEPHONE AND CATV.

4. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING CONDUIT FOR ALL PROPOSED UTILITIES.

5. SEE SHEET C540  FOR NOTES AND DETAILS.

6. CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN UTILITY SERVICES TO BUILDING THROUGHOUT
CONSTRUCTION.

7. ALL NEW UTILITY CONNECTIONS SHALL BE MADE PRIOR TO REMOVAL OF EXISTING
UTILITIES. REFER TO UTILITY SPECIFICATIONS.

8. ALL EXISTING UTILITY LINES MUST MAINTAIN AT LEAST 3' OF COVER.

5' 20' 40' 80'1"=40'-0"
Drawing:

Detail:
Scale:

NCIVIL UTILITY PLAN
01
C140

HEAVY DUTY ASPHALT PAVING

STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVING/SURFACE

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR                                  DATE:

APPROVALS:

VICE CHAIR OR DESIGNEE                                          DATE:

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER                                        DATE:

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR                                        DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
BM

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CB

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
HH

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENSET

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
K



W WW
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WW

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG
/T

UG
/T

S85°56'17"E 340.83'

N
04

°0
1'

55
"E

 3
47

.3
8'

N86°21'43"W 1008.17'

N
03

°2
4'

15
"E

 4
20

.7
6'

S85°41'59"E 664.23'

S
03

°2
7'

00
"W

 7
57

.9
3'

PARCEL I
14.332 ACRES

P.O.B.

CRAIG F. SRBA & ANNA M. SRBAPIN: 220-000596DEED: O.R. 2276A15

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC

SI NALL1 LLC

K
A

R
E

N
 L

. B
A

IL
Y

P
IN

: 2
22

-0
04

35
9

D
E

E
D

: O
.R

. 1
39

68
F0

1

MONICA MORGAN WHITEHEADPIN: 220-000934DEED: IN. 199303020078152

MORGAN N. WHITEHEADPIN: 220-002157DEED: IN. 201509300138096

THE NEW ALBANY COMPANY LLC
PIN: 222-004357

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

 D
E

D
IC

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
T 

2
P

LA
T 

B
O

O
K

 1
15

, P
A

G
E

 5

WOODED

W
O

O
D

E
D

WOODED

W
O

O
D

E
D

W
O

O
D

E
D

W
O

O
D

E
D

OPEN FIELD

OPEN FIELD

SO
U

D
E

R
 R

O
A

D
(6

0'
 P

U
B

L
IC

 R
.O

.W
.)

PROPOSED DETENTION POND

15' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

30
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K 

(C
IT

Y)

50' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

50' BUILDING AND PARKING SETBACK

50
' B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
AR

KI
N

G
 S

ET
BA

C
K

12
5'

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 P

AR
KI

N
G

 S
ET

BA
C

K
(N

EW
 A

LB
AN

Y 
G

R
O

U
P)

8
8

CB#3
RIM ELEVATION = 1050.41
NOT ACCESSIBLE

CB#3
RIM ELEVATION = 1050.28
4" CPP ~ NORTH ~ INVERT = -2.69
24" RCP ~ EAST ~ INVERT = -2.98
4" CPP ~ SOUTH ~ INVERT = -2.77
24" RCP ~ WEST ~ INVERT = -3.07

CB#1
RIM ELEVATION = 1050.24

4" CPP ~ NORTH ~ INVERT = -2.27
24" RCP ~ EAST ~ INVERT = -3.41

4" CPP ~ SOUTH ~ INVERT = -2.22
24" RCP ~ WEST ~ INVERT = -3.61

24" RCP CULVERT END
INVERT = 1046.29

SAN MH#1
RIM ELEVATION = 1057.83
NOT ACCESSIBLE

W W W W
W

W

W

W W W W W W

FW FW FW FW
FW

FW

FW
FW FW FW FW FW

PROPOSED
BUILDING
±53,726.2 SF
FFE = 1060.0

FW
FW

FW
FW

FW
FW

W
W

W
W

W
W

WM
WM MOBILE ASSETPARKING AREA

10

11

D

70' VERIZON SETBACK

70' VERIZON SETBACK

70
' V

ER
IZ

O
N

 S
ET

BA
C

K

10
0'

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 S

ET
BA

C
K

10
0'

 V
ER

IZ
O

N
 S

ET
BA

C
K

P
LA

T 
B

O
O

K
 1

15
, P

A
G

E
7 

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
O

A
D

D
E

D
IC

A
TI

O
N

 P
A

R
T 

1

28'

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS SS SS SS SS SS SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

LANDSCAPE ISLANDS TO
BE GRASSED

CONTRACTOR TO SEED TO
LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

EXISTING BERM AND
PLANTINGS TO REMAIN

LANDSCAPE BEDS TO BE
MULCHED (TYP.)

120 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND

166 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND 263 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND

113 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND

229 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND

247 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND

176 SF LANDSCAPE ISLAND

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER ROAD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: F:\908.019 Verizon New Albany, OH\DWG\C600 Landscape Plan.dwg, 7/9/21 at 2:00 PM By JBULLARD - Last Printed: 7/9/21 at 2:01 PM By Jonathan Bullard

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

Foresite Group, LLC
2101 Magnolia Avenue South, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35205

o | 205.397.0370
f | 944.272.0997

w | www.fg-inc.net

PROJECT NO: 

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

685863-21-01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04-02-21

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y 

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D

SO
U

D
ER

 R
D

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
H

IO
 4

30
54

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

05-14-21

NRS

ZR

CTF

ZR

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

GENERAL NOTES

5' 20' 40' 80'1"=40'-0"
Drawing:

Detail:
Scale:

NLANDSCAPE PLAN
01
C600

LANDSCAPE PLAN

C600

MINIMUM TREE REQUIREMENTS:
1 TREE PER 5,000 SF / (BLDG. SF + DRIVES SF + PARKING LOTS SF)
143,146 SF / 5,000 SF = 29 TREES REQUIRED

29 TREES PROPOSED

INCHES REQUIRED = 25 INCHES + 1/4x((143,146 SF - 50,000 SF) / 4,000) =
31 INCHES REQUIRED
58 INCHES PROPOSED

STREET TREE REQUIREMENTS:
1 STREET TREE IS REQUIRED TO BE PLANTED EVERY 30 FEET
TOTAL DISTANCE ALONG SOUDER ROAD = 305 FEET (EXCLUDING DRIVEWAY)
305 FEET / 30 FEET = 11 STREET TREES REQUIRED

11 STREET TREES PROPOSED

PARKING LOT REQUIREMENTS:
1 TREE FOR EVERY (10) PARKING SPACES
49 SPACES / 10 = 5 TREES REQUIRED

5 TREES PROPOSED

A MINIMUM OF 5% OF THE OVERALL PARKING AREA MUST BE LANDSCAPED
TOTAL PARKING LOT SF = 22,522 SF
5% OF 22,522 SF (22,522 SF x 0.05) =

1,126 SF REQUIRED
1,314 SF PROPOSED

BUFFER REQUIREMENTS:
NATURAL VEGETATION SHALL HAVE AN OPAQUENESS OF 75% DURING FULL FOLIAGE.
PLANTED NO CLOSER THAN 3' TO ANY PROPERTY LINE WHERE THE PERMITTED USE MAY BE
RESIDENTIAL.

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS PLANT SCHEDULE

TREES QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT CAL

31 CRYPTOMERIA JAPONICA `YOSHINO` / YOSHINO CRYPTOMERIA 15 GAL 4` - 5` HT.

26 MAGNOLIA VIRGINIANA / SWEET BAY 15 GAL 4` - 5` HT.

11 QUERCUS ALBA / WHITE OAK B & B 2"CAL

26 QUERCUS RUBRA / RED OAK B & B 3"CAL

8 TAXODIUM DISTICHUM / BALD CYPRESS B & B 2"CAL

37 THUJA X 'GREEN GIANT' / GREEN GIANT ARBORVITAE 15 GAL 4` - 5` HT.

SHRUBS QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME SIZE

28 ILEX CRENATA 'COMPACTA' / DWARF JAPANESE HOLLY
MINIMUM 3.5 FOOT TALL

3 GAL 36" o.c.

SOD/SEED QTY BOTANICAL / COMMON NAME CONT

67,913 SF FESTUCA ARUNDINACEA / TALL FESCUE SOD

333,842 SF SEEDING SEED

PLANT SCHEDULE

GENERAL LANDSCAPE NOTES

1. WARRANTY: ALL PLANTS SHALL BE WARRANTED TO REMAIN ALIVE, HEALTHY, AND IN
THRIVING CONDITION FOR A PERIOD OF ONE YEAR FROM FINAL ACCEPTANCE

2. PLANTS SHALL MEET DOT SPECIFICATIONS AND AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY
STOCK STANDARDS.

3. PLANTS SHALL BE SPECIMEN QUALITY.  PLANTS SHALL BE SOUND, HEALTHY AND
VIGOROUS, WELL BRANCHED, AND DENSELY FOLIATED  WHEN IN LEAF.

4. HEIGHT AND SPREAD DIMENSIONS SPECIFIED REFER TO THE MAIN BODY OF THE
PLANT AND NOT FROM BRANCH TIP TO TIP.  IF A RANGE OF SIZE IS GIVEN, NO PLANT
SHALL BE AS LARGE AS THE MAXIMUM SIZE SPECIFIED.

5. SHADE TREES SHALL BE STRAIGHT UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED

6. PLANTS SHALL BE SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE. OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE SHALL BE THE SOLE JUDGE OF THE QUALITY AND ACCEPTABILITY
OF MATERIALS AND PLACEMENT.

7. PLANTING PLANS INDICATE DIAGRAMMATIC LOCATIONS ONLY.  SITE ADJUSTMENTS OF
PLANTING DESIGN AND RELOCATION OF PLANT MATERIAL INSTALLED PRIOR TO
OWNER REPRESENTATIVE'S APPROVAL SHALL BE DONE WITHOUT PENALTY OR
ADDITIONAL COST TO OWNER.  STAKE PLANT LOCATIONS AT SITE AND OBTAIN OWNER
REPRESENTATIVE'S APPROVAL PRIOR TO PLANT INSTALLATION.

8. PLACE PLANTS UPRIGHT AND TURNED SO THAT THE MOST ATTRACTIVE SIDE IS
VIEWED.

9. BE FAMILIAR WITH UNDERGROUND UTILITIES BEFORE DIGGING.  THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL BE FULLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL DAMAGE OF UTILITY LINES.

10. PROVIDE SHOVEL-CUT TRENCH AT SHRUB BEDS IN LAWN AREAS UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.

11. PROVIDE 3" THICKNESS MULCH AT ALL PLANTS AND PLANTING BEDS.  MULCH MUST BE
3" THICK AT TIME OF FINAL WALK-THROUGH.  MULCH IN SHRUB AND TREE PLANTING
BEDS SHALL BE PINE STRAW UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.  MULCH IN GROUNDCOVER
BEDS TO BE SHREDDED HARDWOOD UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

12. MAINTENANCE WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED UNTIL DATE OF FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY
OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.

13. CONTRACTOR'S PRICES SHALL INCLUDE ALL LABOR AND MATERIAL NECESSARY TO
COMPLETE THE WORK, I.E. MULCH, PLANTING, SOIL MIX, WOOD AND WIRE STAKING
MATERIAL, ETC.

14. QUANTITIES NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK ON THE DRAWING SHALL BE
FURNISHED.  QUANTITY ESTIMATES HAVE BEEN MADE CAREFULLY, BUT THE OWNER'S
REPRESENTATIVE ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR OMISSION OR ERRORS.  HIS ESTIMATES
ARE ONLY AN AID FOR CLARIFICATION OF UNITS AND A CHECK FOR THE CONTRACTOR
TO COMPARE WITH HIS OWN ESTIMATES.  DIFFERENCES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
ATTENTION OF OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE.  NO EXTRA COMPENSATION SHALL BE
ALLOWED FOR EXTRA QUANTITIES NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK.

15. WHERE LANDSCAPING AREAS ADJOIN GRASSED RIGHTS-OF-WAY, SUCH AREAS SHALL
BE CONSIDERED PART OF THE LANDSCAPED AREA FOR PURPOSES OF MAINTENANCE.
AS OF COMPLETION OF SITE IMPROVEMENTS, THE PROPERTY OWNER SHALL HAVE AN
IMPLIED EASEMENT OF THE RIGHT-OF-WAY EXTENDING FROM THE SITE TO THE ROAD
PAVEMENT IN ORDER TO COMPLETE THE REQUIRED MAINTENANCE.

16. CONTRACTOR TO DESIGN-BUILD IRRIGATION SYSTEM TO PROVIDE 100% COVERAGE OF
NEW PLANT MATERIAL.  IRRIGATION HEADS TO BE INSTALLED FLUSH WITH GRADE.

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR                                  DATE:

APPROVALS:

VICE CHAIR OR DESIGNEE                                          DATE:

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER                                        DATE:

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR                                        DATE:

1. TOTAL SITE AREA: 14.33 ACRES

2. DISTURBED AREA: 9.98 AC

3. CURRENT ZONING: INFILL PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT

4. LOT COVERAGE
MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE = 70%
DAY 1 LOT COVERAGE = 26.5%
ULTIMATE (FUTURE) LOT COVERAGE = 58.6%

5. BUILDING SETBACKS :
FRONT SETBACK =                    50 FT (LOCAL) 150 FT (BUSINESS PARK)
100 FT (VERIZON)
SIDE SETBACK (SOUTH) =       15 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)
SIDE SETBACK (NORTH) =       50 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)
REAR SETBACK =                       50 FT (LOCAL) 70 FT (VERIZON)

6. ELEVATIONS
MAX BUILDING HEIGHT: 20.0'
TRANSFORMER AND ACCU SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (BLUE): 8.0'
GENERATOR SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (RED): 26.0'
AHU SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (GREEN): 14.0'
MOBILE ASSET PARKING SCREEN WALL HEIGHT (ORANGE): 10.0'
*MOBILE ASSET SCREEN WALL HEIGHT TO BE FINALIZED UPON

   EQUIPMENT DESIGN

7. PARKING
EMPLOYEES ON MAIN SHIFT: 10
PARKING REQUIRED: (1 SPACE PER EMPLOYEE ON MAIN SHIFT): 10
PROPOSED PARKING: 49 SPACES

- EMPLOYEE/VISITOR PARKING PROVIDED: 37
- MOBILE EQUIPMENT PARKING PROVIDED: 12
- HANDICAP PARKING REQUIRED: 2 SPACES
- HANDICAP PARKING PROVIDED: 2 SPACES

8. PROPOSED LAND USE: TELECOMMUNICATIONS

9. UNDERGROUND IRRIGATION SYSTEM PLANS AND PERMIT
APPLICATION WILL BE PREPARED BY A LICENSED IRRIGATOR AND
WILL BE SUBMITTED WITH THE BUILDING PERMIT APPLICATION.



STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER ROAD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: f:\908.019 verizon new albany, oh\DWG\C600 Landscape Plan.dwg, 7/9/21 at 1:13 PM By CFISHER - Last Printed: 7/9/21 at 1:14 PM By Cal Fisher

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

Foresite Group, LLC
2101 Magnolia Avenue South, Suite 100
Birmingham, Alabama 35205

o | 205.397.0370
f | 944.272.0997

w | www.fg-inc.net

PROJECT NO: 

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

685863-21-01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04-02-21

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y 

G
R

EE
N

FI
EL

D

SO
U

D
ER

 R
D

N
EW

 A
LB

AN
Y,

 O
H

IO
 4

30
54

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

05-14-21

NRS

ZR

CTF

ZR

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

R
EV

IE
W

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

C601

TREE PROTECTION
1/4" = 1'-0"

Crown drip line or other limit of Tree Protection area. See
tree preservation plan for fence alignment.

4'
-0

"

MAINTAIN EXISTING
GRADE WITH THE
TREE
PROTECTION
FENCE
UNLESS
OTHERWISE
INDICATED ON THE
PLANS.

2" X 6' STEEL POSTS
OR APPROVED EQUAL.

5" THICK
LAYER OF MULCH.

NOTES:
1- SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL
TREE PROTECTION REQUIREMENTS.

2- IF THERE IS NO EXISTING IRRIGATION, SEE
SPECIFICATIONS FOR WATERING
REQUIREMENTS.

3- NO PRUNING SHALL BE PERFORMED
EXCEPT BY APPROVED ARBORIST.

4- NO EQUIPMENT SHALL OPERATE INSIDE
THE PROTECTIVE FENCING INCLUDING
DURING FENCE INSTALLATION AND
REMOVAL.

5- SEE SITE PREPARATION PLAN FOR ANY
MODIFICATIONS WITH THE TREE
PROTECTION AREA.

SECTION
VIEW

8.5" X 11" SIGN
LAMINATED IN

PLASTIC SPACED
EVERY 50' ALONG

THE FENCE.

URBAN TREE FOUNDATION © 2014
OPEN SOURCE FREE TO USE

TREE PROTECTION
FENCE: HIGH DENSITY
POLYETHYLENE FENCING
WITH 3.5" X 1.5"
OPENINGS; COLOR-
ORANGE. STEEL POSTS
INSTALLED AT 8' O.C.

KEEP OUT TREE
PROTECTION AREA

5
FX-PL-FX-TRMT-02

SHRUB PLANTING
3/4" = 1'-0"

NOTES:
1- SHRUBS SHALL BE OF SPECIMEN QUALITY.

2- SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR FURTHER REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO THIS DETAIL.

LOOSEN ALL HARDPAN.
USE 50/50 PLANTING

MIX WITH NATIVE SOIL.

3x's widest dimension of root ball.

ROOTBALL.

4" HIGH X 8" WIDE ROUND -
TOPPED SOIL  BERM ABOVE
ROOT BALL SURFACE SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED AROUND THE
ROOT BALL. BERM SHALL BEGIN
AT ROOT BALL PERIPHERY.

PRIOR TO MULCHING, LIGHTLY
TAMP SOIL AROUND THE ROOT
BALL IN 6" LIFTS TO BRACE
SHRUB. DO NOT OVER
COMPACT. WHEN THE
PLANTING HOLE HAS BEEN
BACKFILLED, POUR WATER
AROUND THE ROOT BALL TO
SETTLE THE  SOIL.

3" LAYER OF MULCH.
NO MORE THAN 1" OF

MULCH ON TOP OF ROOT
BALL. (SEE NOTES ON

LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR
TYPE OF MULCH).

ROOT BALL RESTS
ON EXISTING OR
RECOMPACTED

SOIL.

SLOPE SIDES OF
LOOSENED SOIL.

EXISTING SOIL.

FINISHED GRADE.

SHRUB.

SECTION VIEW

URBAN TREE FOUNDATION © 2014
OPEN SOURCE FREE TO USE

3
0001-01

TREE PLANTING
1/2" = 1'-0"

TOP OF ROOT BALL
SHALL BE FLUSH WITH
FINISHED GRADE.

TRUNK CALIPER SHALL
MEET ANSI Z60 CURRENT
EDITION FOR ROOT BALL

SIZE.

ROOT BALL MODIFIED AS
REQUIRED.

EXISTING SOIL.

SLOPE SIDES OF LOOSENED
 SOIL.

PRIOR TO MULCHING, LIGHTLY
TAMP SOIL AROUND THE ROOT
BALL IN 6" LIFTS TO BRACE TREE.
DO NOT OVER COMPACT.
WHEN THE PLANTING HOLE HAS
BEEN BACKFILLED, POUR WATER
AROUND THE ROOT BALL TO
SETTLE THE SOIL.

3" LAYER OF MULCH.
NO MORE THAN 1" OF MULCH ON
TOP OF ROOT BALL. (SEE NOTES
ON LANDSCAPE PLAN FOR TYPE
OF MULCH).

BOTTOM OF ROOT BALL
RESTS ON EXISTING OR

RECOMPACTED SOIL.

CENTRAL LEADER.

SECTION VIEW

 ROUND-TOPPED
 SOIL BERM 4" HIGH X 8"

WIDE ABOVE ROOT BALL
SURFACE SHALL BE

CONSTRUCTED AROUND
THE ROOT BALL. BERM

SHALL BEGIN AT ROOT BALL
PERIPHERY.

FINISHED GRADE.

3x widest dimension of root ball.

URBAN TREE FOUNDATION © 2014
OPEN SOURCE FREE TO USE

LOOSEN ALL HARDPAN.  USE 50
50

PLANTING MIX WITH NATIVE
SOIL.

NOTES:
1- TREES SHALL BE OF SPECIMEN
QUALITY.

2- SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR
FURTHER REQUIREMENTS
RELATED TO THIS DETAIL.

4
0000-01

GROUNDCOVER
3/4" = 1'-0"

EQ.EQ.

NOTES:
1- SEE PLANTING LEGEND FOR GROUNDCOVER SPECIES, SIZE, AND SPACING DIMENSION.
2- SMALL ROOTS (14" OR LESS) THAT GROW AROUND, UP, OR DOWN THE ROOT BALL PERIPHERY ARE CONSIDERED A
NORMAL CONDITION IN CONTAINER PRODUCTION AND ARE ACCEPTABLE HOWEVER THEY SHOULD BE ELIMINATED AT THE
TIME OF PLANTING. ROOTS ON THE PERIPERHY CAN BE REMOVED AT THE TIME OF PLANTING. (SEE ROOT BALL SHAVING CONTAINER DETAIL).
3- SETTLE SOIL AROUND ROOT BALL OF EACH GROUNDCOVER PRIOR TO MULCHING.

PLAN

SECTION VIEW

PAVEMENT.

SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.

GROUNDCOVER PLANTS TO BE
TRIANGULARLY SPACED.

EXISTING SOIL.

8" OF MODIFIED SOIL TILLED WITH 50/50 MIX OF
4" PLANTING SOIL AND 4" NATIVE SOIL.

2 - 3" THICK LAYER OF
SHREDDED HARDWOOD MULCH.

FINISHED GRADE.

6"
 m

in
.

URBAN TREE FOUNDATION © 2014
OPEN SOURCE FREE TO USE2

0003-01

SOD INSTALLATION
NOT TO SCALE

URBAN TREE FOUNDATION © 2014
OPEN SOURCE FREE TO USE

NOTE:  INSTALL SOD SO THAT TOP OF SOIL AND
ROOT LAYER IS LEVEL WITH TOP OF PAVEMENT.

SODDING PROCEDURE:
1.  PREPARE FINISH GRADE (AS PER SPECIFICATIONS)
2. APPLY LIME & FERTILIZER & ROTO-TIL (AS PER SOIL TEST)
3. LAY SOD & WATER THOROUGHLY

ROUGH GRADE

FINISH GRADE

SOIL & ROOT LAYER

6"

2"

1-1/2"

SUBGRADE

LAWN AREA

CULTIVATED SOIL

IMPORTED TOPSOIL

SOD

1/2" EDGE SMOOTH AND
PARALLEL WITH PAVEMENT

PAVED AREA

1
0002-01

PLANNING COMMISSION CHAIR                                  DATE:

APPROVALS:

VICE CHAIR OR DESIGNEE                                          DATE:

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER                                        DATE:

PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR                                        DATE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
D



GENSET

4

4

A451

1

15 15 15 171515

DETENTION POND

M
O

B
IL

E
 A

S
S

E
T

NEW STRUCTURE

± 53,726 SF

1

2

3

17 17 17 17 17

17

5

5

7

12
12

12 12 12

1212

12

14

14
12 12 14 14

14

6

8

10

3

A455

1

GENERAL NOTES

1. SITE AREA: 14.332 ACRES 

2. LANDSCAPE BUFFER REQUIREMENTS: (SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS)

3. FOR EASEMENT AND ROW INFORMATION: (SEE SURVEY DRAWINGS)

4. TREE AND LANDSCAPE INFORMATION: (SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS)

PARTIAL SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

NEW WORK

PROPERTY LINE

EXISTING

Identifier Description

SETBACK

BUILDING ADDITION

FENCE

DRAINAGE LINE

ELECTRICAL LINE

GAS LINE

COMMUNICATION LINE

WATER LINE

OVERHEAD UTILITY

CONTOUR

E

G

T

W

OH

X X

168

FIRE LANE

CONCRETE

ASPHALT

KEY NOTES (SYMBOLS

1. MAIN BUILDING ENTRANCE

2. NEW PARKING 

3. NEW ELECTRIC SECURITY GATE (SEE CIVIL DRAWINGS)

4. NEW GENERATOR

5. FUTURE GENERATOR

6. NEW LOADING DOCK ENTRANCE DV

7. NEW DETENTION POND

8. NEW MOBILE ASSET PARKING

9. NOT USED

10. NEW DRIVE

11. NOT USED

12. NEW ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMERS INSTALLED ON A REINFORCED CONCRETE 

FOUNDATION.  (HVAC 'DAY 1' EQUIPMENT)  SEE DETAIL 3/A533.

(SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS & STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR FOUNDATION)

1 2 , ETC.),

13. NOT USED 

14. FUTURE MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT INSTALLED ON REINFORCED CONCRETE 

FOUNDATION.  SEE DETAIL 3/A533.

(SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS & STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR FOUNDATION)

15. NEW AIR HANDLING UNIT INSTALLED ON A REINFORCED CONCRETE 

FOUNDATION.  (SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS & STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR 

FOUNDATION)

16. NOT USED

17. FUTURE AIR HANDLING UNIT INSTALLED ON A REINFORCED CONCRETE 

FOUNDATION.  (SEE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS & STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR 

FOUNDATION)

CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

dlb associates
265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

T
h

is
 D

ra
w

in
g

 I
s 

T
h

e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 O

f 
D

LB
 A

ss
o

ci
a

te
s 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e

e
rs

, 
P

C
. 

 I
t 

W
a

s 
P

re
p

a
re

d
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

T
h

is
 P

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 I

s 
Li

m
it

e
d

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

. 
 U

n
a

u
th

o
ri

ze
d

 R
e

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
e

r 
U

se
 O

f 
T

h
e

se
 D

ra
w

in
g

s 
O

r 
Id

e
a

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
.

Last Saved: M:\Project Docs\2020\2020450.00\Drawings\Current Set\Linked Files\14836 _BDR.dwg, 5/13/21 at 4:05 PM By EGRAVES - Last Printed: 1/9/19 at 2:56 PM By Erik Graves

N

N

PLAN NORTH

TRUE NORTH

VERTICAL PLANGRADE GRADE

KEYPLAN

M
E

C

#
2

(D
A

Y
 1

)

M
E

C

#
1

(F
U

T
U

R
E

)

A
D

M
IN

(D
A

Y
 1

)

AHUS AHUS

GENSGENS

NEW

BUILDING

14836

David Quirk
DLB Project ID:

Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM

Phone (213) 483-6490

Los Angeles, Calif. 90015

950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural Engineers

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

T
MM

AA
R

NI

1

B

C

2 3

D

E

1 2 3

4 5 6

A

B

C

4 5 6

PROJECT NO:

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE:

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

E

685863−21−01

A

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

D

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04−02−21

05−14−21

N
E

W
 A

L
B

A
N

Y
 G

R
E

E
N

F
IE

L
D

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
D

N
E

W
 A

L
B

A
N

Y
, 
O

H
IO

 4
3
0
5
4

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER RD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

RPA Project # : 

2020450.00

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

A100

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1" = 30'-0"

A100

1
SITE PLAN



ENGINEER BRICK

WINDOW FRAMES

STOREFRONT MULLIONS

ENTRY CANOPY

PARAPET CAP

EXTERIOR DOORS AND FRAMES

OVERHEAD DOOR

LOUVERS

RED FLASHED WIRECUT

DARK BRONZE

DARK BRONZE

DARK BRONZE

DARK BRONZE

SW-6054 CANYON CLAY

SW-6054 CANYON CLAY

DARK BRONZE

ELEMENT TYPE

EXTERIOR MATERIALS/COLOR LEGEND

AHU METAL INFILL PANEL DARK BRONZE

CONDUCTOR BOX AND DOWNSPOUTS DARK BRONZE

GLAZING SOLARBRONZE

CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

dlb associates
265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

T
h

is
 D

ra
w

in
g

 I
s 

T
h

e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 O

f 
D

LB
 A

ss
o

ci
a

te
s 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e

e
rs

, 
P

C
. 

 I
t 

W
a

s 
P

re
p

a
re

d
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

T
h

is
 P

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 I

s 
Li

m
it

e
d

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

. 
 U

n
a

u
th

o
ri

ze
d

 R
e

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
e

r 
U

se
 O

f 
T

h
e

se
 D

ra
w

in
g

s 
O

r 
Id

e
a

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
.

Last Saved: M:\Project Docs\2020\2020450.00\Drawings\Current Set\Linked Files\14836 _BDR (no key plan).dwg, 5/13/21 at 4:01 PM By EGRAVES - Last Printed: 1/9/19 at 2:56 PM By Erik Graves

14836

David Quirk
DLB Project ID:

Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM

Phone (213) 483-6490

Los Angeles, Calif. 90015

950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural Engineers

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

T
MM

AA
R

NI

1

B

C

2 3

D

E

1 2 3

4 5 6

A

B

C

4 5 6

PROJECT NO:

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE:

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

E

685863−21−01

A

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

D

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04−02−21

05−14−21

N
E

W
 A

L
B

A
N

Y
 G

R
E

E
N

F
IE

L
D

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
D

N
E

W
 A

L
B

A
N

Y
, 
O

H
IO

 4
3
0
5
4

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER RD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

RPA Project # : 

2020450.00

ELEVATIONS AND EXTERIOR MATERIALS

A110D

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:3/32" = 1'-0"

A110D

3
NORTH ELEVATION - SCREEN WALL

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:3/32" = 1'-0"

A110D

4
SOUTH ELEVATION - SCREEN WALL

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:3/32" = 1'-0"

A110D

2
WEST ELEVATION SCREEN WALL

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:3/32" = 1'-0"

A110D

1
EAST ELEVATION - SCREEN WALL



A
4
5
54

A
4
55

5

2

A455

A
4
55

3

TO EXTERIOR FACE OF CM
U

13' - 11 5/8" EXTERIOR FACE OF CM
U

TO
 E

XTE
RIO

R F
ACE 

O
F 

CM
U

13' -
 4

" E
XTE

RIO
R F

ACE 
O

F 
CM

U

14' - 10 1/8"

12' - 8 3/8" CLEAR

FINISH FLOOR

0"

BRICK W/ 

MASONRY TIES 

TYP.

1-1/2" AIR GAP

PRECAST CONCRETE CAP

CMU BLOCK

T
O

P
 O

F 
C

M
U

7
' -

 4
"

T
O

P
 O

F 
C

A
P

7
' -

 8
"

NEW CONCRETE PAD

AND GRADE BEAM

(SEE STRUCTURAL

DARAWINGS)

FINISH FLOOR

0"

PRECAST CONCRETE CAP

BRICK TO MATCH

EXISTING BUILDING

BOLLARD AND PIPE

PIVOT

T
O

P
 O

F 
C

M
U

7
' -

 4
"

T
O

P
 O

F 
C

A
P

7
' -

 8
"

FINISH FLOOR

0"

PRECAST CONCRETE CAP

BRICK TO MATCH

EXISTING BUILDING

BOLLARD AND PIPE

PIVOT

GATE

A455

6

FINISH FLOOR

0"

T
O

P
 O

F 
C

M
U

7
' -

 4
"

T
O

P
 O

F 
C

A
P

7
' -

 8
"

PRECAST CONCRETE CAP

BRICK TO MATCH

EXISTING BUILDING

4" 1"

EQ EQ

2
"

4
"

9
"

9
"

HOOK

3/4" Ø CANE BOLT 

W/ 4" HOOK

COLLARS (TYP.)

16 GA. SHEET 

METAL PLATE, 

BOLT TO PANELS

LEFT BOLT SHOWN, 

RIGHT BOLT SIMILAR

4
"

1
"

2
' -

 0
"

5
" 1" Ø DRILLED HOLES

WOOD SLOT GATE 

CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

dlb associates

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

T
h

is
 D

ra
w

in
g

 I
s 

T
h

e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y 
O

f 
D

LB
 A

ss
o

ci
a

te
s 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e

e
rs

, P
C

. 
 I

t 
W

a
s 

P
re

p
a

re
d

 E
xc

lu
si

ve
ly

 F
o

r 
T

h
is

 P
a

rt
ic

u
la

r 
P

ro
je

ct
 A

n
d

 I
s 

Li
m

it
e

d
 T

o
 T

h
is

 P
ro

je
ct

 O
n

ly
. 

 U
n

a
u

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

e
p

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 O
r 

O
th

e
r 

U
se

 O
f 

T
h

e
se

 D
ra

w
in

gs
 O

r 
Id

e
a

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
.

Last Saved: M:\Project Docs\2020\2020450.00\Drawings\Current Set\Linked Files\14836 _BDR (no key plan).dwg, 5/13/21 at 4:01 PM By EGRAVES - Last Printed: 1/9/19 at 2:56 PM By Erik Graves

14836
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

STAMP

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM

Phone (213) 483-6490

Los Angeles, Calif. 90015

950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural Engineers

a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
s

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

T
MM

AA
R

NI

1

B

C

2 3

D

E

1 2 3

4 5 6

A

B

C

4 5 6

PROJECT NO:

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE:

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

E

685863−21−01

A

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

2021

D

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN 04−02−21

05−14−21

N
E

W
 A

L
B

A
N

Y
 G

R
E

E
N

F
IE

L
D

S
O

U
D

E
R

 R
D

N
E

W
 A

L
B

A
N

Y
, 
O

H
IO

 4
3
0
5
4

VERIZON WIRELESS

SOUDER RD
NEW ALBANY, OHIO 43054

NEW ALBANY
GREENFIELD

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

RPA Project # : 

2020450.00

ARCHITECTURAL DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

PLANS, ELEVATIONS & DETAILS

A455

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1/4" = 1'-0"

A455

1
ENLARGED PLAN @ DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1/4" = 1'-0"

A455

2
SECTION @ DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1/4" = 1'-0"

A455

4
DUMPSTER ELEVATION - SIDE

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1/4" = 1'-0"

A455

3
DUMPSTER ELEVATION - GATES

Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1/4" = 1'-0"

A455

5
DUMPSTER ELEVATION - REAR Scale: Drawing:

Detail:1 1/2" = 1'-0"

A455

6
CANE BOLT DETAIL



GENERAL NOTES

1. Refer To Sheet E120 For Site Lighting Scope Of Work.  This Plan Provided For Reference Only.

2. Refer To Sheet E602 For The Lighting Fixture Schedule.

3. Site Lighting (Poles And Wall Mounted) Shall Have Integral Controls Including: Photocell That Turns
Lighting On At Dusk / Off At Dawn; Occupancy Sensor That Dims Lighting To 50% Illumination When No
One Is Present.

DescriptionIdentifier

PARTIAL SYMBOLS & ABBREVIATIONS

1.0 Iso Footcandle Line

0.5 Iso Footcandle Line

0.25 Iso Footcandle Line

1 2KEY NOTES     (SYMBOLS       ,      , ETC.)

1. Not Used.

XXXXX XXXXX XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X
X

X
X

X

XXXXX X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

XXXXXXXXXX XXXXX

X X X X X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

X
X

XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX

SW2

SW2

SW2

SW2 SW2 SW2 SW2 SW2 SW2

SW1

SW1

SW1

SW2 SW2

SW1 SW1

SW2

SG1

SG1

SG1

SP4

SP2

SP2 SP2SP2

SP2

SP2

SP4

SP2 SP2

SW2

SW2

New Facility

SG1

SG1

PROJECT NO: STAMP

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION

C
A

R
N

E
Y

S
 P

O
IN

T
 M

S
C

 S
A

P
 D

E
S

IG
N

2
 C

O
L

L
IN

S
 D

R
IV

E

P
E

N
N

S
 G

R
O

V
E

, 
N

J
 0

8
0
6
9

11408−20−01

DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

VERIZON WIRELESS

2 COLLINS DRIVE

PENNS GROVE, NJ 08069

CARNEYS POINT MSC

SAP DESIGN

2021

14784

David Quirk
DLB Project ID:

Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

?

T
h

is
 D

ra
w

in
g

 I
s 

T
h

e
 P

ro
p

e
rt

y 
O

f 
D

LB
 A

ss
o

ci
a

te
s 

C
o

n
su

lt
in

g
 E

n
g

in
e

e
rs

, 
P

C
. 

 I
t 

W
a

s 
P

re
p

a
re

d
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

T
h

is
 P

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 I

s 
Li

m
it

e
d

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

. 
 U

n
a

u
th

o
ri

ze
d

 R
e

p
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
e

r 
U

se
 O

f 
T

h
e

se
 D

ra
w

in
g

s 
O

r 
Id

e
a

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
e

d
. 

Last Saved: \\w-fs\Vol3\14\147\14784 - VZW - Carney's Point Greenfield\14784 081 E120P.dwg , 2/25/21 at 5:41 PM By BPALMER - Last Printed: 4/10/21 at 6:04 PM By Young, Sarah

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of

Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon

Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while

performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

100% SUBMISSION

N

PLAN NORTH

N

TRUE NORTH

VERTICAL PLAN
GRADE GRADE

KEYPLAN

NEW BUILDING

PRO
PERTY LIN

E

STORM WATER
PONDMEC #1

(DAY 1)
MEC #2
(DAY 1)

AHUSAHUS

GENS GENS

PARKING

M
. 

A
SS

E
T

S PENNSVILLE AUBURN RD

COLLINS DR

A
D

M
IN

(D
A

Y
 1

)

PRELIMINARY PLAN 09−14−20

N

PLAN NORTH

N

TRUE NORTH

VERTICAL PLAN
GRADE GRADE

KEYPLAN

NEW BUILDING

PRO
PERTY LIN

E

STORM WATER
PONDMEC #1

(DAY 1)
MEC #2
(DAY 1)

AHUSAHUS

GENS GENS

PARKING

M
. 

A
SS

E
T

S PENNSVILLE AUBURN RD

COLLINS DR

A
D

M
IN

(D
A

Y
 1

)

10−19−20

12−14−20

AHJ SUBMISSION 01−29−21

02−26−21

04−09−21

2' 10' 20' 40'1"=20'-0"
Drawing:

Detail:

Scale:
NSITE PLAN

01

E120P

BP

BP

CG

ELECTRICAL
LIGHTING PHOTOMETRICS
SITE PLAN

E120P



PROJECT NO: STAMP

COPYRIGHT:

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

CAD DWG FILE: 

SHEET TITLE

SHEET NUMBER

NETWORK COMPLIANCE SUBMITTALS

REV DESCRIPTION DATE

30% SUBMISSION

DATE

Th
is

 D
ra

w
in

g 
Is

 T
h

e 
P

ro
p

er
ty

 O
f 

D
LB

 A
ss

o
ci

at
es

 C
o

n
su

lt
in

g 
En

gi
n

ee
rs

, P
C

.  
It

 W
as

 P
re

p
ar

ed
 E

xc
lu

si
ve

ly
 F

o
r 

Th
is

 P
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 A
n

d
 Is

 L
im

it
ed

 T
o

 T
h

is
 P

ro
je

ct
 O

n
ly

.  
U

n
au

th
o

ri
ze

d
 R

ep
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 O

r 
O

th
er

 U
se

 O
f 

Th
es

e 
D

ra
w

in
gs

 O
r 

Id
ea

s 
Is

 P
ro

h
ib

it
ed

. 

Last Saved: M:\Civil3d_Proj\20244\Construction\20244PH1.dwg, 6/24/21 at 5:17 PM By SGF - Last Printed: 6/24/21 at 6:26 PM By Scott G. Fisher

60% SUBMISSION

90% SUBMISSION

BID SET SUBMISSION

PRELIMINARY PLAN

2020

VERIZON WIRELESS

24242 NORTHWESTERN HWY
SOUTHFIELD, MI 48075

LODGE MEC BUILDING
EXPANSION

14787
David Quirk

DLB Project ID:
Questions For dlb Call:

Phone:

265 Industrial Way West, Eatontown, N.J. 07724

dlb associates
CONSULTING  ENGINEERS, P.C.

(732) 774-2000

This drawing was prepared solely for the use of
Verizon Wireless and must only be used by Verizon
Wireless employees, contractors, and vendors while
performing the work shown on this drawing. Any

other use of this drawing is forbidden.

as
so

ci
at

es

& ASSOCIATES
JOHN A. MARTIN

WWW.JOHNMARTIN.COM
Phone (213) 483-6490
Los Angeles, Calif. 90015
950 S. Grand Avenue
Structural EngineersT

MM
AA

R
NI

LO
D

G
E 

M
EC

 E
XP

AN
SI

O
N

24
24

2 
N

O
R

TH
W

ES
TE

R
N

 H
W

Y
SO

U
TH

FI
EL

D
, M

I 4
80

75

10-08-20

11-12-20

04-05-21

05-19-21

06-25-21

20244

20244PH1.dwg

SGF

CTS

SGF



 



PC 21 0719 Ganton Parkway East Part II Final Plat FPL-66-2021  1 of 2   

 

 

 

 

Planning Commission Staff Report 

July 19, 2021 Meeting 

  

 

GANTON PARKWAY EAST PHASE II 

PRELIMINARY AND FINAL PLAT 

 

 

LOCATION:  Generally located east of Beech Road and south of Worthington Road 

(portion of PID: 094-107106-00.000). 

APPLICANT:   City of New Albany 

REQUEST: Preliminary and Final Plat   

ZONING:   Limited General Employment (L-GE)  

STRATEGIC PLAN:  Mixed Use 

APPLICATION: FPL-66-2021 

 

Review based on: Application materials received June 21, 2021.   

Staff report completed by Chris Christian, Planner. 

 

I. REQUEST AND BACKGROUND  

The application is for a combined preliminary and final plat for dedication of right-of-way for 

the second and final phase of Ganton Parkway East. On October 16, 2017 the Planning 

Commission approved a final plat for the first 1,800 foot section of this road (FPL-67-2017). 

The proposed plat will allow for the construction of a public road that will complete the 

connection from Beech Road up to Worthington Road as recommended in the Engage New 

Albany Strategic Plan and will provide access to existing and new development sites in the 

future. 

 

II. SITE DESCRIPTION & USE 

The proposed right-of-way dedication will allow for the extension of an existing portion of 

Ganton Parkway East up to Worthington Road in Licking County within the New Albany 

International Business Park. The proposed plat area has served as temporary access for the 

Facebook site during its initial phase of construction while the main entry drives were under 

construction. The property is zoned L-GE and allows the same uses as the Personal Care and 

Beauty Park such as office, distribution, and warehousing uses.  

  

III. PLAN REVIEW 

Planning Commission’s review authority of the preliminary and final plat is found under C.O. 

Section 1187. Upon review of the final plat the Commission is to make recommendation to City 

Council. Staff’s review is based on city plans and studies, zoning text, zoning regulations.  

 

▪ This plat dedicates right-of-way to the City of New Albany for the completion of Ganton 

Parkway East and matches the alignment of the existing portion of the road.   

▪ The Ganton Parkway East phase 2 dedication extension consists of approximately 1,832 +/- 

feet of new right-of-way east of Beech Road for a total of 3.28 acres.  

▪ This proposed street dedication location is identified as a connection in the Engage New 

Albany Strategic Plan and will provide roadway connection to existing and new development 

sites in the immediate area.  

▪ This plat right-of-way width is designed to accommodate current and future traffic and 

provide additionally means of access to and from current and future development in this area. 

▪ There are no reserves being platted or lots being created within this new road extension.   



PC 21 0719 Ganton Parkway East Part II Final Plat FPL-66-2021  2 of 2   

▪ The plat dedicates 78’ of right-of-way. There is an existing 30 foot easement on the west side 

of the right-of-way area to ensure all of the desired street improvements and utilities can be 

accommodated. Ganton Parkway East is identified as a Business Park road character 

classification in the Engage New Albany Strategic Plan. The 78 feet of right-of-way plus 30 

feet of easement, totaling, 108 feet, is consistent with the 67-115 foot recommendation in the 

strategic plan. 

▪  

IV.  ENGINEER’S COMMENTS 

The City Engineer has reviewed the referenced plan and has no comments.  

 

V. RECOMMENDATION 

Basis for Approval: 

The proposed road plat is consistent with the goals and objectives found in the New Albany 

Strategic Plan for this area. This road will serve as a critical connection within the New Albany 

Business Park and provide access for existing and new development sites in the future.  

 

VI. ACTION 

Suggested Motion for FPL-66-2021 (conditions may be added):   

 

Move to approve FPL-66-2021.  

 

Approximate Site Location: 

 
Source: Google Earth 

 
 

 



2
1

In Witness Whereof, BRENT B. BRADBURY, Treasurer of MBJ HOLDINGS, LLC, has
hereunto set his hand this         day of           _________, 20___.

      Signed and Acknowledged                                  MBJ HOLDINGS, LLC
            In the presence of:

______________________________            By _____________________________
                                                                              BRENT B. BRADBURY,

                                           Treasurer

______________________________

STATE OF OHIO
COUNTY OF FRANKLIN   ss:

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said State, personally appeared BRENT B.
BRADBURY, Treasurer of  MBJ HOLDINGS, LLC,  who acknowledged the signing of  the
foregoing instrument to be his voluntary act and deed and the voluntary act and deed of said MBJ
HOLDINGS, LLC for the uses and purposes expressed herein.

In Witness Thereof, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official seal this _____ day
of ___________, 20___.

My commission expires _______          ____________________________________
                                                                Notary Public,                           State of Ohio

Situated in the State of  Ohio, County of  Licking, City of  New Albany, and in Section 16,
Township 2, Range 15, United States Military Lands, containing 3.279 acres of land, more or less,
said 3.279 acres being part of  that tract of land conveyed to MBJ HOLDINGS, LLC by deed of
record in Instrument Number 201708040016416, Recorder's Office, Licking County, Ohio.

The undersigned, MBJ HOLDINGS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, by BRENT
B. BRADBURY, Treasurer,  owner of the lands platted herein, duly authorized in the premises,
does hereby certify that this plat correctly represents its "GANTON PARKWAY EAST PHASE 2
DEDICATION AND EASEMENTS", does hereby accept this plat of  same and dedicates to
public use, as such, all of Ganton Parkway shown hereon and not heretofore dedicated.

Easements are hereby reserved in, over and under areas designated on this plat as "Easement".
Each of  the aforementioned designated easements permit the construction, operation and
maintenance of all public and quasi-public utilities above, beneath, and on the surface of the ground
and, where necessary, for the construction, operation and maintenance of service connections to all
adjacent lots and lands and for storm water drainage.  No building shall be constructed in any area
over which easements are hereby reserved. Easement areas shown here on outside of  the platted
area are within lands owned by the undersigned and easements are hereby reserved therein for the
uses and purposes expressed herein.

Approved this _____ Day of _______                 __________________________________
20___                                                                     Mayor,                          New Albany, Ohio

Approved this _____ Day of _______                 __________________________________
20___                                                                     City Engineer,    New Albany, Ohio
           

Approved this _____ Day of _______                 __________________________________
20___                                                                    Council Representative to Planning
                                                                              Commission,                New Albany, Ohio

Approved this _____ Day of _______                 __________________________________
20___                                                                     Chairperson, Planning Commission,
                                                                                                                    New Albany, Ohio

Approved this _____ Day of _______                 __________________________________
20___                                                                    Finance Director,          New Albany, Ohio

Approved and accepted by Resolution No. ____________, passed __________, 20___,
wherein all of  Ganton Parkway shown dedicated hereon is accepted as such by the Council for the
City of  New Albany, Ohio.  Approval of  this plat shall become null and void unless recorded prior
to ___________________, 20___.

Transferred this ____ day of ________,              __________________________________
20___.    Auditor,                   Licking County, Ohio

Filed for record this ___day of _______,             __________________________________
20___ at __________M. Fee $_________   Recorder,                 Licking County, Ohio

Instrument No. _________________________

SURVEY DATA:

BASIS OF BEARINGS:  The bearings shown hereon are
based on the Ohio State Plane Coordinate System, South
Zone, NAD83 (1986 Adjustment). Said bearings originated
from a field traverse which was tied (referenced) to said
coordinate system by GPS observations and observations of
selected Franklin County Engineering Department
monuments Frank 80 and Frank 180. The portion of  the
centerline of  Beech Road having a bearing of  North 03°08'02"
East, is designated the "basis of bearing" for this plat.

SOURCE OF DATA:  The sources of recorded survey data
referenced in the plan and text of this plat are the records of
the the Recorder's Office, Licking County, Ohio.

IRON PINS: Iron pins, where indicated hereon, unless
otherwise noted, are to be set and are iron pipes,
thirteen-sixteenths inch inside diameter, thirty inches long
with a plastic plug placed in the top end bearing the initials
EMHT INC.

PERMANENT MARKERS:  Permanent markers, where
indicated hereon, are to be one-inch diameter, thirty-inch
long, solid iron pins, are to be set to monument the points
indicated and are to be set with the top end flush with the
surface of  the ground and then capped with an aluminum cap
stamped EMHT INC.  Once installed, the top of  the cap shall
be marked (punched) to record the actual location of  the point.
These markers shall be set following the completion of  the
construction/installation of  the street pavement and utilities
and prior to the City of  New Albany, Ohio's acceptance of
these infrastructure improvements.  The New Albany, Ohio,
City Engineer shall be notified in writing when the markers
are in place.

GANTON PARKWAY EAST PHASE 2
DEDICATION AND EASEMENTS



GANTON   PARKWAY

2
2

GANTON PARKWAY EAST PHASE 2
DEDICATION AND EASEMENTS


	21 0719 PC Agenda.pdf
	21 0621 DRAFT PC Minutes.pdf
	PC 21 0719 Verizon Wireless Data Center FDP-64-2021.pdf
	404.531-01 Verizon FDP.pdf
	Exhibit A.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	Pages from 21 0618 Verizon Data Center FDP Submittal.pdf
	21 0709 Verzion FDP Resubmittal.pdf
	2021-07-09_VERIZON NEW ALBANY, OH_Civil Final Development Plan_REV1
	Sheets and Views
	C100 CIVIL SITE PLAN
	C101 CIVIL SITE DIMENSION PLAN
	C130 CIVIL GRADING & DRAINAGE PLAN
	C140 CIVIL UTILITY PLAN


	21-0709 VzW New Albany - Architectural Site Plan
	Sheets
	A100 - ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN


	21-0709 VzW New Albany - Dumpster Enclosure Details
	Sheets
	A455 - ARCHITECTURAL DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE PLANS, ELEVATIONS & DETAILS



	Pages from 21 0618 Verizon Data Center FDP Submittal-2.pdf
	21 0709 Verzion FDP Resubmittal
	21-0709 VzW New Albany - Architectural Site Plan
	Sheets
	A100 - ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN


	21-0709 VzW New Albany - Dumpster Enclosure Details
	Sheets
	A455 - ARCHITECTURAL DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE PLANS, ELEVATIONS & DETAILS


	Security Fence
	VzW - New Albany - Photometrics Plan - Example 1
	VzW - New Albany - Photometrics Plan - Example 2


	PC 21 0719 Ganton Parkway East Part II Final Plat FPL-66-2021.pdf
	21 0621 Ganton Parkway East Phase 2 Plat Submittal.pdf
	20180033-VS-PLAT-01-1.pdf (p.1)
	20180033-VS-PLAT-01-2.pdf (p.2)




